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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREERBATRR DM

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Forefront
Group Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s audited consolidated net loss for the year was
approximately HK$41.88 million (2071: net loss of approximately
HK$329.31 million). The net asset value of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$954.84 million as at 31 December 2011
to approximately HK$951.11 million as at 31 December 2012. The
net loss was mainly attributed to the unrealised loss from securities
trading and an impairment loss on assets held by a disposal group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Logistic Services

The Group through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
invests 40% issued share capital of Golden Fame International
Investments Group Limited (“GFIIGL") since 13 September 2007.
The Company's interest in GFIIGL was treated as an interest in
associates. GFIIGL provides various logistic services in Hong Kong
and the PRC including third party logistics, freight forwarding,
airline general sales agency, supply chain management, river trade
shipping and terminal stevedoring.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TREEEUAREERBARR M

During the year under review, the overall operation performance
of GFIIGL has been able to sustain at a level similar to that for the
year in 2011, relatively undeterred by a weak economic recovery
in the United States, the ongoing Euro crisis and low global
trade. Subsequent to the mild decrease in business in the first
half of 2012, the turnover has improved during the rest of 2012
as the result of the increase in throughput volume and usage of
integrated logistics freight services. However, it was mainly due to
group restructuring and additional costs that incurred for listing
application at the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") board
market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx"), a
profit of approximately HK$0.28 million was shared by the Group
as a result. Subject to market trends and conditions, it is expected
that the result of GFIIGL for the coming year would remain stable.

As informed by GFIIGL to the Company, GFIIGL and its subsidiaries
intend to list on the GEM of the HKEx. GFIIGL has further informed
the Company that the application for the listing is in progress.

Trading of Securities

The Group through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sino
Wealthy Limited, invested in Hong Kong's listed securities and
unlisted securities as short-term investments. During the first half
of the year, the European sovereign debt crisis continued to drive
volatility in the Hong Kong stock market. From the third quarter of
the year, the debt crisis stabilised and the Hong Kong stock market
showed sign of recovery. During the year, the Group recorded
realised losses of approximately HK$2.32 million from the disposal
of certain securities and an unrealised loss of approximately
HK$34.72 million on the portfolio.

Money Lending Business

The Group through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Forefront
Finance Co., Limited, provides short-term loans to various
borrowers. These short-term loans normally carried interest rates
of 2.5% to 24% per annum. Within the financial year, the money
lending business contributed HK$2.48 million in interest income to
the Group and a net charge of bad and doubtful debts provision
amounting to approximately HK$1 million was made to the loan
portfolio.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREERBARR DM

Disposal of a Subsidiary

On 26 April 2010, the Company’s indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary, Regent Square Limited, completed its acquisition of
Richful Zone International Limited at a consideration of HK$79.2
million. The consideration was satisfied by an issue of 330,000,000
shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.24 per share to
Mascotte Holdings Limited. Richful Zone International Limited and
its subsidiary (“Richful Zone Group”) hold 50% of the interests
in the concession rights and forestry contracts in respect of three
pieces of forest lands located in Simao District, Puer City, Yunnan
Province, the PRC, with a total site area of approximately 36,735
Chinese Mu. The concession rights and interest in the forest
lands will expire in January 2060. Since acquisition, the operation
of the forest lands has not achieved the level of profits which
can contribute profit to the Group after payment of estimated
management fee to the PRC partner. In view of this situation, on 8
June 2012, the Board decided to dispose the entire equity interest
in Richful Zone International Limited to a subsidiary of Heritage
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 412) at a consideration
of HK$50 million. The Board believes that the disposal will provide
the Company with a good opportunity to realise the value of
an asset which needs a medium and long holding period before
it can generate profits contribution to the Group. Furthermore,
the Company received significant cash inflow to improve the
liquidity position of the Company, which provided the Company
with financial flexibility to participate in attractive investment
opportunities as they arise. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
Richful Zone Group were classified as held for sale in the Group’s
2012 interim financial statements. As the selling price was lower
than the carrying amount of net assets of Richful Zone Group, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$16.94 million was recognised
in profit or loss for the year. The disposal was completed in
September 2012 and no further gain or loss on disposal was
recognised at the completion date.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TREHREUAREEEA®E DM

PROSPECT

On 28 January 2013, the Company announced the proposed rights
issue at a subscription price of HK$0.25 each on the basis of one
rights share for every two shares held on the record date.

The rights issue was completed on 15 March 2013. The Company
utilised HK$45 million from the net proceeds of HK$47.75
million of the rights issue for its money lending business and
the remaining balance of the net proceeds will be applied for its
general working capital.

On 19 March 2013, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with a placing agent to place 80,404,339 new shares
on a fully underwritten basis at a price of HK$0.21 per placing
share. The placing was completed on 25 March 2013. The net
proceeds from the placing will amount to approximately HK$16.03
million. The Company intends to apply the aggregate net proceeds
as general working capital for the existing businesses of the Group
and/or to finance any future investment when opportunities arise.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash resource stated at
HK$49.41 million. The Group at an advantageous position to take
on new investments when opportunities arise.

Al &
R-Z—Z#—A-+/\B ARASMHE

BIRN A BERA M f — B
2 EAE ABR0.25B T Z RBEETH

HEER -_E—Z=ZF=ZATHHTK - HR
Z TS IE FEE B47,750,0008 7T AREIE
1§ E F145,000,0008 ST AR EEFER - AT
SRBFESRAEERAEE—REEES -

RZZE—=F=A+hB AQrHEEER
B VEERE KEHEPRBEEENTRE
ERR110.217%8 7T 2 B 1% B 580,404,339[% #7
B -BEEEBEER-_T—=F=A=+A
HEK - BEEEHEZAHMEREFEEOA
16,030,0007%8 7T ° A A A 5F & #5 48 AT 15 30 E
FRAEAEERBEEK 2 —BREEES
/SARBRKSHREATMAEZERE
B

R-E——F+_A=+—HBH AEEZR
© & JREA9,410,0005 7T - ANEE R A B Ak
o AR S BB ETIIRE -

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED &5 EARA 7

Iy

ANNUAL REPORT 2012




-
o
)
m
m
o)
o
b4
=
fo)
o)
[¢]
Cc
o
C
=
=
m
o
i
S
bid
at
il
>}
al

YL H——&— 2102 1HOd3IH TVNNNY

Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREUAREERBARR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

The Group financed its operation largely through internal cash
resources. As at the end of the reporting period, the cash balance
was maintained at approximately HK$49.41 million (2077:
HK$138.18 million). The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated as total
borrowings divided by net assets, is stated at 0% (2077: 0%) since
the Group had no outstanding borrowing as at 31 December 2012
(as at 31 December 2011 HK$Nil). As at 31 December 2012, the
Group’s net assets value amounted to approximately HK$951.11
million (as at 371 December 2011: HK$954.84 million) with total
assets of approximately HK$958.73 million (as at 371 December
2011: HK$958.24 million). Net current assets were approximately
HK$526.49 million (as at 31 December 2011: HK$746.94 million)
and the current ratio was 70.03 times (as at 31 December 2011:
220.49 times).

Capital Structure

On 31 January 2012, 365,474,270 share options were granted to
qualified allotees under the share option scheme at an exercise
price of HK$0.1042 per ordinary share of HK$0.01 each. The share
options were fully exercised on 7 February 2012. The Company
received proceeds of approximately HK$38.08 million.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TREEEUAREERBARR M

On 29 June 2012, the Company proposed the consolidation of
every ten issued shares of par value of HK$0.01 each into one
consolidated share of par value of HK$0.10 each then a reduction
in nominal value of all the issued consolidated shares from par
value of HK$0.10 each to par value of HK$0.001 each by the
cancellation of the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.099
on each consolidated share and the share subdivision of each
of the authorised but unissued share at par value of HK$0.01
each into ten shares of par value at HK$0.001 each. The capital
reorganisation was approved by shareholders at the EGM of the
Company held on 14 August 2012 and approved by the Grand
Court of Cayman Islands on 16 November 2012.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is not subject to material foreign currency exposure
since its operations are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
As such, no hedging instrument was considered necessary by the
Board during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2012, margin facilities from regulated securities
brokers were granted to the Group, which was secured by the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with a
carrying amount of HK$434,762,000 (2077: HK$445,338,000).
As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not utilised (as at 37
December 2011.: HK$Nil) any of these facilities.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 22 employees including
directors of the Company. Employee remuneration, bonus, share
option scheme and training policies are commensurate with
performance, experience and comparable to the market rate. The
Group contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEREUAREERBATRR DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RREE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent RZE——F+-_A=+—H AEBHTE
liabilities (20771: HK$Nil). ERSIABE(ZFE——F-F¥EL) -
Yeung Ming Kwong B

Chairman mEX

Hong Kong BE

27 March 2013 —E—=%=RA=++tH
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 54, joined the
Company on 26 April 2007. Mr. Yeung is the Chairman of the
Company, formerly an executive director and CEO of Kai Yuan
Holdings Limited, stock code: 1215 (formerly known as Wah Lee
Resources Holdings Limited) and an executive director of Goldwiz
Holdings Limited (delisted on 8 September 2008, stock code: 586).
He has over 20 years of experience in import and export trading
and investment business in the PRC. He also holds directorships in
major subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree (“Ms. Lo”), aged 44, joined the
Company on 26 April 2007. She holds an EMBA from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business and a Bachelor's Degree of
Arts from York University, Canada. Ms. Lo has over 10 years of
experience in business development and investment. She was
an executive director of Goldwiz Holdings Limited (delisted on
8 September 2008, stock code: 586) from May 2006 to January
2007. She also holds directorships in major subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Wen Louis (“Mr Wen"), aged 78, joined the Company on
1 September 2006. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
from City University of New York and was an Executive Director of
Forefront International (Hong Kong) Limited (“FIHK") from 1993 to
1997 and General Manager of FIHK since August 2005. Mr. Wen
has extensive experience in engineering, marketing and advertising
from previous position at J. Walter Thompson Co. and Dow Jones
International Marketing Service in the United States. Mr. Wen is
also an independent non-executive director of Willie International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 273) since 22 April 2009.

Management Profile
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Management Profile

EEEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (“Mr. Chung”), aged 52, joined the
Company on 26 April 2007. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
an Associate Chartered Accountants (England and Wales). Mr.
Chung has over 20 years of experience in finance and project
investment. He is an executive director and Chairman of Radford
Capital Investment Limited (Stock code: 901), an executive director
of Ming Fung Jewellery Group Limited (Stock code: 860) and
an independent non-executive director of Heritage International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 412) and Dragonite International
Limited (stock code: 329).

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora (“Ms. Lam”), aged 37, joined the
Company on 18 May 2007. She obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Law from the University of Hong Kong in 1999 and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 2001. Ms. Lam is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Lam joined Messrs. Lam & Co. in 2007 and is now
a partner of the firm. Ms. Lam is an independent non-executive
director of Tack Fiori International Group Limited (stock code:
928) (formerly known as Tack Fat Group International Limited) and
Radford Capital Investment Limited (stock code: 901).

Mr. Pak William Eui Won (“Mr. Pak”), aged 33, joined the
Company on 28 December 2009. He is currently a director of
HEC Capital Limited and its subsidiaries and formerly a director
of Hennabun Capital Group Limited. He holds a Master of Laws
degree in U.S. taxation from the University of Washington School
of Law, a Juris Doctor's degree from the University of British
Columbia Faculty of Law and an Economics and Commerce degree
from the University of British Columbia Faculty of Arts. Mr. Pak is
an attorney licensed by the New York State Bar and is a member
of the New York State Bar Association and the American Bar
Association. He was a lawyer in the investment funds practice
at White & Case’s New York and Hong Kong offices. He has
substantive experience in the establishment and representation
of both U.S. and international private investment funds including
private equity funds, hedge funds, real estate funds, distressed
funds and hybrid funds.
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The directors herein present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and through its
subsidiaries and an associated company, is principally engaged in
the business of provision of logistic services in Hong Kong and
the PRC; investment in forest interest; properties investments;
securities trading and money lending business.

After the completion of the disposal of Richful Zone Group in
September 2012, the Company, through its subsidiaries and an
associated company, continues to be principally engaged in the
provision of logistic services in Hong Kong and the PRC, properties
investments, securities trading and money lending business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 67.74% of the Group's turnover in
respect to the money-lending business and the securities trading
service providers of the Group accounted for 100% of the Group's
service costs in relation to the securities trading business. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 40.29% of the
Group’s turnover in respect of the money-lending business. At
no time during the year did a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which the knowledge of the directors of the Company
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued capital) have any
material interest in any of the Group’s largest customers.

RESULT AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of affair of the Company and of the Group at the
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
35 to 110.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend.
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EEEHRE

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

Details of movements in share capital and share option scheme of
the Company are set out in notes 22 and 23 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTION, WARRANTS
OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of movements in share option of the Company are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer shares on a pro rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
The surplus in distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2012 amounted to approximately HK$898,639,000
(2011: HK$838,023,000).

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 111 and
112 of the annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Related party transactions are disclosed in note 28 of the
financial statements. The Company was not aware that any
related parties transaction as set out in note 28 constitute a
connected transactions of the Group, nor are there any connected
transactions that shall be disclosed in this annual report under the
Listing Rules.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree
Mr. Lam Yick Sing (resigned on 28 February 2013)

Mr. Wen Louis
Mr. Zhuang You Dao (resigned on 26 February 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora
Mr. Pak William Eui Won

In accordance with Article 116 of the Article of Association of
the Company, Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree and Mr. Pak William Eui
Won will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARE AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the Company’s chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO"”)) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies and which were
required to be entered in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

Report of the Directors
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% of
the Company’s

Number of issued share

Name of Directors Capacity shares held capital

=R NN

BETRA

EEpnE 8 FrisRH A ZHEDL

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong Beneficial owner 397,893 0.10%
B EE ERBEEA

Mr. Lam Yick Sing (Note) Beneficial owner 2,400,000 0.60%

a5 A (BYAE) BEmBEAA

Note: Mr. Lam Yick Sing resigned as Executive Director on 28 February 2013.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below and note 23 in the consolidated financial statements, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate, neither the Directors nor any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities or
debt securities of the Company or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
was a party to and in which any of the Company’s directors or
members of its management had a material interest in, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
on 6 August 2007. Under the Scheme, the Directors may grant
options to those qualified participants (including Directors and
employees) who, in the opinion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the development of the Group and any entity in
which the Group holds an equity interest.

The following table discloses movement in the Company’s share
options under the Scheme during the year.
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R-B—Z=F
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Qualified allotees in 31 January 2012 HK$0.1042 -

aggregate
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No share options were lapsed or cancelled under the Scheme
during the year.

As at 31 December 2012, no option has been granted to any
directors.
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EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the following person (other than the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) has interests or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, as known
to the Company or recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information
received by the Company.

FERREEMALTRRG REBERK
7z

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 BEARQAEFF
MEIRIEFHFRPEKROIEIKREFEZE
MRS RIERBARBESZER LT
AT (BESHARRREZTHABRIN BRA
ANRIRD RAEAEROFHEERERERAAFE
BITIRAS% R L2 S TAE -

Number in shares % of voting right Number of shares % of voting right

Name of Shareholders (Long position)

(Long position)

(Short position) (Short position)

BRER BH#E ERERZEIHL BH#HE EREEZEIHL
(#R) (#A) (#A) (#R)
HEC Capital Limited (Note 1) 39,723,546 9.88% - -

HEC Capital Limited (Ff5E1)

Note 1: HEC Capital Limited is interested in the share capital of the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiary Hennabun Development Limited which in turn
wholly owns Murtsu Capital Management Limited, being the beneficial

owner of the relevant shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to
32.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited
since the year 2007.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Yeung Ming Kwong
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
tEXEREZS

The Company recognises that good governance standards
maintained throughout the Group serves as an effective risk
management mechanism for the Company. The Board of Directors
(the "Board”) of the Company is committed to ensuring a high
level of corporate governance standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company has adopted its own code on corporate
governance practices which incorporate all the code provision in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company will continue to enhance the
corporate governance standards throughout the Group and ensure
further standards be put in place by reference to the recommended
best practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on Share Dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). The terms of Code of Conduct are no less exacting than
the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct applies
to all the relevant persons as defined therein. Specific enquiry has
been made of all Directors of the Company who have confirmed in
writing of their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Code of Conduct during the year under review.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Board of Directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 6 members
including 3 executive directors and 3 independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details are set out on pages 11 to
12 of this report. The executive directors are responsible for
managing the Group’s business, including business development,
corporate strategies and company policies. The Independent Non-
executive Directors endeavor to assist the Board to maintain high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting standards as
well as providing adequate checks and balance for safeguarding
the interest of shareholders and the Company as a whole. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, the number of Independent
Non-executive Directors at all times exceeded one-third of the
Board membership. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent non-
executive director of his/her independence to the Company.
None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed for a specific term which constitutes a
deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. However,
one-third of the Directors of the Company (both executive and
independent non-executive) are subject to retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting under the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are in line to those of the CG Code. The
Board is comprised of professionally qualified and diversified
individuals.

TRERBRSE

hEERE

By

KB

RARERH EFGHBKEAK B
SRR TEER=EBIIERNTEST KF
CEBRERABREENENRE-ATEESR
BEBAEBEZ XS BEEBER XX
BMEABIREK - BIUFNTESTBNBBE
BEER R KT 2 BB H fth 58 il 14 BB iR
£ WHEH T M HIE - URBERE RAAFZ
BN -BE-_T——-F+=-A=+—H
EFE - BUFRTEE A —BHBBEE
FEREANB =D — - BELTHRA A2
AR EERBEIIFRTESHH I BRE

WREBINARA]  RNR B IRAEE T IEH
TEFHRESEEY LEBXNRELCERE
SAST R Z SFRIESIA.4.1 - SR IREB A A R
BHRERAA ARA =92z —2 &% (B85
WITEELBUIFNTES) ARNEERRE
FRELBAER-ANAFRBEENESR
Bt BRAAFIZERERERTALE
ERTAIZTRAKRX -EFEXEREAE
HEERZZERBAL

23

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED &5 EARA 7

Iy

ANNUAL REPORT 2012




-
o
)
m
m
o)
o
b4
=
fo)
o)
[¢]
Cc
o
C
=
=
m
o
i
S
bid
at
il
>}
al

2102 140d3d TVNNNY

BHEE——&

Corporate Governance Report
tEERAHRS

Directors’ Training

All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as a
director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training for its directors. During the year, all directors,
namely Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong, Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree, Mr. Wen
Louis, Mr. Lam Yick Sing, Mr. Zhuang You Dao, Mr. Chung Yuk
Lun, Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora and Mr. Pak William Eui Won had
participated in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

All directors had provided the Company Secretary with their
training records for the year under review.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. In 2012, the Board held 4 scheduled
full board meetings. In addition, executive Board meetings are
convened when necessary to deal with day-to-day matters that
require the Board’s prompt decision, and therefore usually only
executive directors attend. Individual attendance records on full
board meetings, committees meetings and general meetings
are set out on page 25 of this Annual Report. Directors who are
considered having conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not
be counted in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions subject to certain exceptions set
out in the Articles of Association of the Company. The Company
Secretary maintains minutes of the Board meetings for inspection
by directors. All directors have access to the services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on corporate
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, Audit Committee
member, Remuneration Committee member and Nomination
Committee member of the Company may take independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company should they so
wish.
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TRERBRSE

Board, Committee and General meetings Attendance EXSE ZEERBREAEZHER

The following table indicates the number of Board, Committee TRETEZEG EETZESABRRAD
and general meetings during the financial year and the number of RAMBREERNBTERCHAERSESL

A

attendance by each of the Directors: EZEgRIRE:

Number of meetings attended/held
hE/ BTEENY

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name Board Committee Committee Committee General
#E Exg ERZEE yMzEe REZES BRRAE
Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BRKEE 10/10 22 22 11 3/3
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree ERBNT 7110 - - - 03
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEBEE 10/10 - - - 3/3
Mr. Wen Louis BARKE 10/10 - - - 33
Mr. Zhuang You Dao TrRELE 7110 - - - 13

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEBLE 3/10 0 22 - 3/3
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora MRS 2+ 7110 22 22 11 03
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won% & 7110 212 212 171 13

During the year, meetings of the Chairman and the independent FAN EFREABVERNTEEFETENITE
non-executive Directors without presence of the Executive Directors EREBEESBATERETEE ImkR
and the management were held to discuss and review the MMITEERERE I RR -

performance of the Executive Directors and the management.
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Corporate Governance Report
tEERABRSE

Directors’ Duties

The Board is in charge of leadership and supervision on the
Group's affairs and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group. Each director has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include but
not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions and
disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on the
appointment or reappointment of directors, and other significant
operational and financial matters. Directors are kept up-to-date
by monthly management information on a timely basis as well
as on major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility to prepare the financial statements and have
them audited on an annual basis. The Company has adopted
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong in
preparing financial statements. Reasonable and prudent judgment
and estimates have been made. The Group announces its financial
results on a timely basis.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

20
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Corporate Governance Report

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not have a
designated position of Chief Executive Officer. The daily operation
and management of the Company is monitored by the Executive
Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a Nomination Committee with defined terms of
reference. Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee are
chaired by Independent Non-Executive Directors and Nomination
Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Group. On 16 March
2012, the Board adopted a new terms of reference of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
to align with the Listing Rules requirements.

TRERBRRSE

d #FlE RIEEREANEERESZ
BTTRIRERTFM(WE) Rk
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®

(a)

(b)

(c)

28

XERAWSE

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises of three Independent Non-Executive Directors of
the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audit
findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
has discussed auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters (including the interim and
annual financial statements) with senior management and the
auditor. In addition, the Audit Committee has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
responsible for the review and determination of the
remuneration policy and packages of the directors and
management executives. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee follow the CG Code. No director is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and an executive director. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and senior management.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of interim and annual results announcements
reflects the Board’s commitment to provide transparent and up-to-
date disclosures of the Group’s performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the financial
reporting process and the quality of the financial reporting of the
Group. The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the integrity
of the Group’s annual and interim financial statements. It also
reviews the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies and
the changes to these policies as well as ensuring these financial
statements comply with accounting standards and regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company and the responsibilities of the external
auditors with in respect to financial reporting which are set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 33 to 34.

External Auditor

The fees payable to the Company’s auditor, Mazars CPA Limited,
in respect of audit, review services and non-audit services in
relation to the circulars of a major transaction for the year ended
31 December 2012 amounted to HK$700,000, HK$150,000 and
HK$90,000 respectively.

TRERBRSE
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348 7 B AZEAN R -

MR % B A
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2BH) z BB RA700,000% 7T 150,000
7 7T 290,000/ T °
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Corporate Governance Report
tEERERSE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets and the
compliance with laws and regulations. This system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks of
failure where its goal is to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance regarding the achievement of organisational objectives.

The Board, through its Audit Committee and external auditor,
assesses the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance control.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, the Company amended and adopted an amended
and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association, Details can
be referred to the Company's circular dated 22 May 2012. A copy
of the latest consolidated version of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association is posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders are requested to follow article 72 of the Articles
of Association of the Company to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings. According to article 72 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, general meetings shall be convened
on the written requisition of any two or more members of the
Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

TEXERERS
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Corporate Governance Report
tEXEREZS

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or
she should give a notice to the secretary of the Company in writing
of the intention to propose a person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so
elected, no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the
date appointed for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company's website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy inpromoting
investor relations and communication by maintaining meetings
with institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts
through different means including meetings, presentations and
correspondence. In an effort to enhance communications with
shareholders and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.forefront.com.hk) to disseminate information relating to the
latest business developments and all Company announcements.
The Company regards the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM")
as an important event as it provides direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders. All shareholders of the Company
are given at least a minimum of 20 clear business days notice
of the date and venue of the AGM at which time the Directors
and Committee members are available to answer questions on
the business. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to
encourage shareholder participation. The Board, according to the
Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll.
The results of the Company voting will be announced on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange website and the Company website.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Forefront Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Forefront
Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group"”) set out on pages 35 to 110, which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

B % BET RS

Mazars CPA LIMITED

BEER @ ot o 0557 4 LA W
42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
A R A U T 1 8 B BR R My 40 M
Tel Erf: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {3 H: (852) 2810 0032

Email B #: info@mazars.hk

Website #d1E: www.mazars.hk
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BERRESARRBEMABEGITMASHEM
ZEBUBRERRBB ARG 2 HE
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MEE-BEEZNREFESHAMOGHEMZ
ERERBEAETER I ZFEUEX
BELFETERBAS  YRIIZATESZ KA
EREXSHFAMBBRRELAFEERNE
R BH ER R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Mo BE RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
27 March 2013

Fung Shiu Hang
Practising Certificate number: P04793
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETEWARR

Year ended 31 December 2012 #Z - F— —F+_-H=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——4%F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B & THER T T
Turnover EE X 3(a) 2,189 (80,852)
Other revenue HAth Uy = 3(b) 21,301 -
Other income H b W A 3(0) 2,848 46,434
Net (charge) release on provision for REEREE (T H)
bad and doubtful debts b EPER 17(d) (999) 70,141
General and administrative expenses — R R AT (15,845) (18,606)
Changes in fair value of financial assets REEERZATEER 2
at fair value through profit or loss BB EEZ A TFEE (34,716) (346,732)
Impairment loss on assets held by HESBMBEEZRE
a Disposal Group (as defined in note 19)  &18 (& R 519) 19 (16,937) -
Loss from operation ReEmBE (42,159) (329,615)
Share of result of an associate/associates ~ fE{G —fE & 7],/
BrE N Tm 2 A 11 282 307
Loss before taxation B R BT ES 18 4 (41,877) (329,308)
Taxation 18 7 _ _ -
Loss attributable to owners of BRAREEAEGESR %
the parent 8 (41,877) (329,308) @
5
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEEEA %
for the year - - §
4
2
Total comprehensive loss attributable to & 2 7 & A E4S %
owners of the parent 2HEBEARE (41,877) (329,308) -
HK$ HK$ g
%5t T |
(Restated) '|“|"
(e=5) g
=
Basic and diluted loss per share BEREARBEESE 9 (0.10) (1.18) i
Z
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e U BRI R

At 31 December 2012 R-E——#+_-_H=+—H

2012 2011
—E-— —T——f
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER 10 41 56
Interest in an associate/associates N—EBLE AT/
N ol 11 36,530 32,248
Long-term debt investment RHBEBHBKRE 12 280,051 -
Intangible assets mEE 13 = 67,592
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHERBTEE 14 108,000 108,000
424,622 207,896
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through REEREZATFEERE Y
profit or loss IS EE 15 454,717 445,338
Loan receivables FEULE K 17 25,724 164,146
Other receivables H {th g Uy 3008 18 4,260 2,677
Bank balances and cash ROTEFREAS 49,411 138,183
534,112 750,344
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H A JFE 1 k18 7,627 3,403
Net current assets RBEEFE 526,485 746,941
NET ASSETS EEFE 951,107 954,837
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital [N 22 402 36,547
Reserves i 950,705 918,290
TOTAL EQUITY BELE 951,107 954,837

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

March 2013 and are signed on behalf by:

Yeung Ming Kwong

3%
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2012

BB AR R &

R-ZF—ZF+=-A=+—H

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
2012 2011 :
—sE——F T4 I
Note HK$°000 HK$’000 :
B & THER T T :
I
Non-current assets RBEE [
Interest in subsidiaries Gl PN § 16 917,194 881,800
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EMBEE 14 = - :
|
|
917,194 881,800 |
|
|
Current assets REBEE :
Other receivables Hoth JE U FRIB 18 258 343 |
Bank balances and cash RITHEERIES 25,153 65,589 :
|
|
25,411 65,932 :
|
Current liabilities RBAEE :
Other payables E h JE T 5RIE 5,435 1,190 :
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHBI B A R FRIA 16 36,956 70,799 :
I
42,391 71,989 I
|
I
Net current liabilities RBAEBEFEE (16,980) (6,057) :
I
NET ASSETS BEFE 900,214 875743 M4
E
o
Equity and reserves RERFEE :§
Share capital P& 2% 22 402 36,547 :‘;
Reserves & 24 899,812 839,196 : g
w
‘
TOTAL EQUITY REAE 900,214 875,743 '
i
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 KHESFENR_ZT—=F=-HA=-TtHH#tHE i
March 2013 and are signed on behalf by: REETE THTIWESRKRES: »Iieltlw
Yeung Ming Kwong Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree E
B EEBR %
Director Director %‘
EZE EFE :

37




-
o
)
m
m
o)
o
b4
=
fo)
o)
[¢]
Cc
o
C
=
=
m
o
i
T
g
at
il
b
al

B H——&— 210¢ LHOd3H TVNNNY

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREZSH X

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z=F—

ZFEFZH=F—HIFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

BRARARERSE AL
Share Capital

Share Share option Capital  redemption Accumulated Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve deficit equity

R ROEE BRERZE EXfiE EXREREB By E REAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THT THT TET FTRT FER TR

At 1 January 2011 R-Z——%—H—H 406,082 1,177,654 - 10,482 1,173 (705,146) 890,245

Comprehensive loss 2EESR

Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (329,308) (329,308)
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EFBLE

for the year - - - - - (329,308) (329,308)
Transactions with owners BREBAETZRS
Issue of shares on rights issue, BB B AT IR D

net of expenses (BMkHAX) 32,487 361,413 - - - - 393,900
Capital reorganisation BASH (402,022) - - - - 402,022 -
Total transactions with owners ~ BREBAETZRZEHE (369,535) 361,413 - - - 402,022 393,900
At 31 December 2011 and A e =

at 1 January 2012 ER-Z——%—H—H 36,547 1,539,067 - 10,482 1,173 (632,432) 954,837
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - - (41,877) (41,877)
Total comprehensive loss FREAFBRARE

for the year - - - - - (41,877) (41,877)
Transactions with owners BEEAETZRS
Share options granted (note 23(c)) % HE M (HE23(c)) - - 67 - - - 67
Exercise of share options T RMRAE (FiEE23())

(note 23(b)) 3,655 34,492 (67) - - - 38,080
Capital reorganisation (note 22(a)) ~ AEA (K 22(a)) (39,800 - - - - 39,800 -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEBAETZRIZHEE (36,145) 34,492 - - - 39,800 38,147
At 31 December 2012 K=®-=f+-A=t-8 402 1573559 - 10,482 1173 (634509) 951,107
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #EZ _—F——F+_-_HA=+1—HIFZF

2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——%F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B & THER T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Cash generated from KERE (A B:
(used in) operations 25 87,306 (362,359)
Net cash generated from (used in) REXBHE (FR)RAS
operating activities FH 87,306 (362,359)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received SR EESS 4,791 581
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BREREH
equipment (16) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHLEBEE
financial assets - (125,281)
Purchase of long-term debt investment BERPEBIEE (265,000) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of LE—FHRBARZ
a subsidiary WERAFE 19 50,000 100,000
Capital contribution to an associate mA—EgEATEE (4,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHFARESFE (214,225) (24,700)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from issue of new shares under 18 1% B8 A% #E &t 2 3 17 51 A%
share option scheme Fr{83K18 38,147 -
Proceeds from issue of new shares on HAR S BT AR 2 P15 /08
rights issue, net of expenses (EMBRHAS) = 393,900
Net cash generated from RETHRESREERE
financing activities 38,147 393,900
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #ZE-F——4F+=H=4+—HIFFE

2012 2011

—E——fF —EF——%F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

B & FHET T T
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BERBASEEY (RD)

cash equivalents ®nFEEE (88,772) 6,841
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzReRREEED

beginning of year 138,183 131,342
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESRESEEY
end of year, represented by DSRTHEFERAEERE

bank balances and cash 49,411 138,183
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Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Forefront Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office,
principal place of business, activities and particulars of the
Company and its subsidiaries are set out in the Corporation
Information and Report of the Directors of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2011 consolidated financial statements. A summary of
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Bt %% R MY R

A=

BHEBEBRAR ([ARAE]) BRHA2
BEEMKIZ 2 BRAR  EROHRES
BARZMARRR ([BRM]) Eme
ARBLEMBRAB ZEMPERLE
EEFMEMA B LFRENAF
BRABAEMNEZTEREA -

TESTHE

mREXE
HEEAVBRERDIRERTEVHRE
ER ([BAMBREEN]) R -FL
MBEREENR—GR BERELER
g ([BEGHMAE]) BB ZME
ERERMBREER FE G ER
(IFEGF LR k2B FEARE
ARAIRE R R RRD 2 B E - It
ERAMBHRERNTEBRAEZF LT
BAIZ BRI EGRI -

kSRR BREZMBEER T
——FHAMBREN R 2 IR
R H- TXRIAREERAZE
BRIHABE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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i

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as
at 31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as that
of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceased.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position,
separately from owners of the parent. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, is measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis.

2. TESFHBE(E)

FFEEE
mENFMBERRARAIGFEREES
SRR MR T X # 5 2 & 5T R A
o ETHMBTARADARFERFE-

REEE
RAEBRREEARTREMANB
REBEBFT-_A=T—"BRLLZH
BHRR -MBRRZHMFHRR IV EAR
REABRZBEFEEREARFEH
—BEHBRER-

EENARBZ AR X5 WL R
EENRAMRSHELRES 2 HY
$ o [ B 2 7 2 S 48 e A S WUERS2 5
HYRREAMEERILYEBIEA
e

RS IR A 2 M ATRR KR
BMBRARZREFTSRE WHE
BRAHEBADHES - R WIER T
ZHEBREERREHEEEES T
A ARNMRKKE R RIEREIZLL
BOWBBRARZFEE ITEAYF
BERRAREER TAMEREEAQF
AR FEECERSE LIS
AREREEHEZANEEE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the parent and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the parent.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary is recognised on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary is accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, jointly controlled entity or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.

Bt %% R MY R

2. TESFHBE(E)

ReEE(#F)

DI E ERAARRE
BERahEtE2ERAZAKRBY IEB
RERBEEAAREER S -2
WARRBEFEN G RRHEB AN FIEZEKR
o ENRSEYCRE R &
R IR B A o

B
i 75 5 2B 8 ) 2 S 25 1 3R
COMER Tt e ey Y PP
AR Z B BARSIERER S - &
8 2 R B 2 R E S
FIABE L RBESRHE AR
MR BB RS AR
HENKERREY A FERER A
ARE HEERRBRRL BB RS
ARHEA -

WA S B R R E M B AR 2 126l A
HEBREONBERREZAFERRK
EEHIEEEMBETAMNREESZA
FEZABRZHBARZEE (8
EEE) BB R IEERER R K
EEFEEBZIRECEMERZEE
HE LA HEMNBRARNEMS
EWABRZRE RERAAERLE
A EES B EMASAZ AR EER
RTERIME R RRE 2 EMIRE kX
AT B B 1 AP 48 R Bk B MR 2 AE fa] & %8
THAEESEE BRARIIENHKE
EEEAR - AT EEREAMIER
(sE ) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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i

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses.
The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.

The Group’s investment in associate is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income includes the Group's share of
the post-acquisition results of the associate for the year.
The consolidated statement of financial position includes
the Group's share of the net assets of the associate and
also goodwill. The Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses when the Group’s share of losses of the
associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest
in the associate, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.
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M2 A
MERREAREARATARBRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Associates (Continued)

On the loss of significant influence, the Group remeasures
any retained interest in the former associate at fair value. The
difference between the fair value of any retained investment
and proceeds from disposing of the part interest in the
associate and the carrying amount of the investment at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised in profit
or loss. In addition, all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of the former associate are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
former associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. The fair value of the retained interest on the date
of ceasing to be an associate is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset subsequently.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repair and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the year in which they are incurred.

Bt %% R MY R

ETRETHE(F)

BENR (&)

REERTENR AKEEATFEE
Mt 8RAMERR 2 EARERES -
EARERE R EZ L QAR R0 #
B REZAFERREEATEN
ERARARASEMERIERNES
IRHERR o BN - Z BT E At 2 AR 31
RIEG S R A FER Z FIB S B A B &
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EREIE R Z R FERR SRR ERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Leasehold improvement 50%
Furniture and fixture 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 33%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives which are determined by the
period over which it is expected to bring economic benefits to
the Group. The forestry land use rights and tree entitlement
are amortised from the date they are available for use over
their estimated useful life of 50 years.

ERETHE(F)

M- -BERRE (£)
REBREFRME -BFERRE A
BER RAafHERABEZ Tl
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

The Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortisation
method for these intangible assets annually and makes
adjustment when necessary.

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
and only when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A financial
liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or financial
liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial assets or financial liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any resultant
gain and loss recognised in profit or loss.

Bt %% R MY R
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
(i) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or (iii) derivatives that are not designated financial
guarantee contracts or not designated and effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss only if (i) the designation
eliminate or significantly reduce the inconsistent treatment
that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or
(i) they are part of a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities that are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded
derivatives that would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including loans and other receivables
and amounts due from subsidiaries are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-free
loans and without any fixed repayment term or the effect
of discounting would be insignificant. In such case, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment loss. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition over the year to maturity. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition, impairment or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

Bt %% R MY R
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated at this category or not
classified in any of the other categories of financial assets.
They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as a separate component of equity until the
assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are stated at cost less impairment loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables and
amount due to subsidiaries. All financial liabilities except
for derivatives are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets, other
than those at fair value through profit or loss, are impaired.
The impairment loss of financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in subsequent
periods through profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash equivalents

For the purpose the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalent represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
net of bank overdrafts. For classification in the statement of
financial position, cash equivalents represent assets similar in
nature to cash and which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases.

Realised gain or loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised gain or loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised to restate to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for those
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised directly in
equity.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation which are to be treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation, are translated at the closing
rate at the end of the reporting period;

e Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

54

All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
the disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, the loss of control of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation, and the
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences deferred in the separate
component of equity relating to that foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.

On disposal or partial disposal of the Group's interest
in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the non-
controlling interests in that foreign operation and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets with finite useful lives may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount provided is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be require to settle the obligation.
Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as operating
leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of leased
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Long service payment

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service payment
under the Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method and discounted to its
present value and after deducting the fair value of any related
assets, including retirement scheme benefit.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. The fair value is determined using the Black-
Scholes Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the transactions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the years in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award (“vesting date”). During the vesting period, the
number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately
is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss
for the year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to
the reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T R L

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESHBE(£Z)

Related parties BEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the HMEATREAEEFHEZ ATHE
Group. B2 o
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related to the Group if that person: U B EAZN £ (8] P i
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects
future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability of the loans
receivable. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including assessing the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance will be required. At the end of reporting period,
the carrying amount of loans receivable after provision
for impairment amounted to HK$25,724,000 (2071:
HK$164,146,000).

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in subsidiaries/
associates has suffered any impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 and follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in determining
whether amounts due from these entities are long-term debt
investment and available-for-sale financial assets stated at cost
less impairment loss are impaired. Details of the approach are
stated in the respective accounting policies. The assessment
requires an estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and the selection of
appropriate discount rates. Future changes in financial
performance and position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the adjustments of
their carrying amounts.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s unlisted convertibles notes are stated at fair
value based on the valuations performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the valuers
have based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. In relying on the valuation reports, the directors of
the Group have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuations is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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BB R 1% 2 IR & 8 A25,724,0007%
T (= F——14 :164,146,000;C ) °

RE R EW IR Z B

AEBIREEE 25 ERIF365 FFF
BRBLAR,/ BMERRZREFEH
BRE WAKEEEEa ERIF39% 2
HolEERALEERRE RPUEH
BB MIERAR S RE R RS R 2 7] 3
HEMBEERAGHRBE BRIIE
HENEEZ ST RE AR A
BEZARRASRE (BREBHRE) R
KEEEZHAXR -HLFERB UG
REARMNBREE S EHHERS
B2 bst AmMASRE S BIELHE -

AFE A
AKEZFETTARERREDLE
R (T 2 (R T (E5) -1
BEE 2T (R - A A DS RO T fh st
2R R BEE IR EREE A&
B O T A R AR
RERF TR -

63

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED &5 SEARA 7

-y

ANNUAL REPORT 2012




Notes to the Financial Statements

T R L

2. FEEHBE(E)
ERMBBREREN ZRREH
RERTRLEFEMBHRERER &
BB AGDRMHATZEN K
BRI ERMBRE LN ZFEARAK
FERARENR MAKETRBRER

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which
the Group has not early adopted.

YL H——&— 2102 1HOd3IH TVNNNY
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Amendments to

Presentation of items of other

°
A

BRGHEANE IR

2IEBERRAER

HKAS 1 comprehensive income’ {EET
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits? EREHENSE19E  EERW
(ZF——%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements? RS ENER BN BERR
(Z5—%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint B G EN 285 RBERNRRAEELRRYL
Ventures? (ZF——F) R A&?
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements? BB REER REUBEE
F105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? RN BREER BERH
FNHR
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities? BRI BREER REEMERER
F12%
Amendments to Additional transition relief — B BEREER BIMNBEER-HEVE
3 HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements, B10% BARE BER BAETH
o HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, Disclosures of LEABNR REEMEERER
% HKFRS 12 Interests in Other Entities? BEBBREER
% F120% 2 55T
= HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement? B BEREER AYERHE
= 138
o Amendments to First-time Adoption of Hong Kong BRUBREER BRRNEBHBRE
. HKFRS 1 Financial Reporting Standards? F152 B3] EBIP
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase B (BEBEHBRE BABSHERRY
= of a Surface Mine? REZ89) FIFL A2
a -RBE0%
Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements Project — 2009- ZEEBHTH EENERE-ZZZAN
2011 Cycle? WEER FE-T——FRW
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T L

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011),
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 9
Amendments to

HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities?

Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”

Investment Entities — Amendments
to Separate Financial Statements,
Consolidated Financial Statements,
Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities’

Financial Instruments?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, and Transition
Disclosure?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of assessing the possible impact

on the future adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs, but is

not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their impact on

the Group's consolidated financial statements.

TESHEE(F
ERUMBBREERN 2 RRES (£)

BEEHBREER
ENLid H|

il
F32F 2 EFT

BEGIERE2T
(ZF—F) 5%
BBmELAE105
EAMBREER
125 2185

BB KREER
£9%

BEARBREER
FORLERYERE
ER BT 2 EFT

BE-UBUBEER
AR

2 -HENHEER
yHaE

REBR-BUMKH
R EABBERR K

BHOERED 2]

FHITA

BRMBREEREIR

BB A
MBIARBRRE

! RCE-——FLtA-—BARZERGZFER

i A 3K

2 R-E-—=F—-A—HRZEREGZFESR

i A 3K

3 R-_E-—MFE-A—BRZEMIGZFER

i A 3K

¢ R-_E-RF-—A—BRZERGZFER

i A 3K

AEE R IERT AR RIRNZ FHR] K
EABEEMBERELERNAELELEZF
Z R ARENAEMAYAEE
RAMBRR T E-
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 3. EXEERKHE
Turnover and revenue recognised by category are analysed as BOHEBR s XA RWESITOT
follows:
2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
(a) Turnover (a) B#¥5
Net realised loss on disposal of HENERREA T EEIE
financial assets at fair value LHBEEZ
through profit or loss B EIEFE (2,315) (97,884)
Interest income from loan receivables FEWE R 2 FEHA 2,482 11,517
Dividend income from listed securities FHEHFZEREWA 2,022 5,515
2,189 (80,852)
2012 2011
3 —E——F —T——F
g HK$'000 HK$'000
E TER T
%
c (b) Other revenue (b) Eftigz
5
g
e Interest income from unlisted FIETRHABBEREZ
long-term debt investment FEMA 21,301 -
all

>
z
Z
c
>
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m
o
9
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3. TURNOVER AND REVENUE (Continued) 3. BxERWkE (&)
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
(c) Other income (c) B
Interest income FLB M A 365 581
Write back of other payable 8 [B] H 4th FE 1S 5RIR - 23,910
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBAR AT - 17,661
Other Hith 2,483 4,282
2,848 46,434
4. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 4. BREAIEE
This is stated after charging: PR AT ES BB T Y B IBE IR :
2012 2011
—®F-=F —F——F E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F#T “"ﬁf
[a]
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET & 700 950 £
Depreciation of property, M- WEREETE 75'
plant and equipment 31 353 %
Operating lease charges on premises MEKLEHE SN 2,056 1,463 z
Amortisation of intangible assets A A 587 1,408 £
o
Staff costs, including directors’ BINAK BREEFWS: 2
emoluments:
— Salaries and other allowances —F e R EMER, 5,257 4,828 -
- Contributions to defined — R ER-RETEIH R i
contribution plans 148 143 o
B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

T R L

5. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 5. EEM&

Year ended 31 December 2012
HE-E-“E+-B=t-HLEE

Appointed Resigned
during the year  during the year Basic
and up to the and up to the salaries, Mandatory
date of these date of these allowance Provident
financial financial and other Fund scheme
statements statements Fees benefits contribution Total
REAR RERR
BERSHBRR BELSHBHRR 2hxFe. BHEEARS
Name of Director Esps RAZE RHRE wE BRERHARA SEBR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 343 - 343
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree EFRRT - - - 420 14 434
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BRAEE - - - 420 14 434
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BRBLE - - 120 - - 120
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora i e - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhuang You Dao fREkE - 26 February 2013
—“A=tiA - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won’t e - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Lam Yick Sing haBEsE - 28 February 2013
Z3-F
—“A-tNA - 396 14 410
360 1,699 [} 2,101
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T L

5. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 5. EEME (£)

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-T--Ff-F-t+-HIEE

Basic
salaries, Mandatory
allowance Provident
Appointed Resigned and other Fund scheme
during the year  during the year Fees benefits contribution Total
EXEe. BHEAES
Name of Director e RERZHE RENEHE we  RHREMEHN STEIfE 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TEL TETL TERL
Mr. Wen Louis BREE - - - 318 - 318
Ms. Lo Oi Kwok, Sheree BERIL - - - 420 12 432
Mr. Yeung Ming Kwong BREEE - - - 40 12 43
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEHLE - - 120 - - 120
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora MRE R - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Zhuang You Dao IRk - - - 120 - 120
Mr. Pak William Eui Won Pak William Eui Won%t £ - - 120 - - 120
Mr. Lam Yick Sing MEBEE - - - 375 12 387
360 1,653 36 2,049
No director waived any emoluments during the year. No FRAVEEEWRETMENE -REE-Z
incentive payment nor compensation for loss of office ——H+ZA=1+—HIEFE X&H
was paid or payable to any director for the year ended 31 B A A = T Sl B AR (] SRIBE
December 2012 (20171: Nil). RBCRBERME(—F——F #)-
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s

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 6.

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2011: three) are executive directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 5.

The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2071: two)
individuals during the year were as follows:

EEFAL
AfIHEHFALR B (ZF——
FZ)RPTEE BREZHEER
M RES A -

FRAENEBMEL (—ZF——F @)
ALz :

2012 2011
—2-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Basic salaries and allowances HAF € MoERL 1,020 1,020
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B R 28 24
1,048 1,044
The emoluments fell within the following band: ENFIATEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——fF
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 LT 21,000,000 7T 2 2

During the year, no payments were paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees)
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FRAFEYERARIUSSHEAL (B
REEREMER)XNRE EFHE
B hn B2 s hn B AR SR H By 2 2R ol B BB 4

f&e



TAXATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is

exempted from taxation in the Cayman Islands. Hong Kong

Profits Tax has not been provided in the financial statements

as the Company and its subsidiaries have no assessable profits

for the years of 2012 and 2011.

7.

Bt %% R MY R

IR
AARIRHASESEMEKT WERS
MR EHEHIE BRARQE REKM
BARR - ZE—ZFR_Z——FUHE
JERBUE A MW BRI B MK FIR
BBEFET R -

Reconciliation of tax expenses BLIEBA X HH IR
2012 2011
—E——fF —EF——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Loss before taxation RELRIEE (41,877) (329,308)
Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate & & &M ST £16.5%
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) —E——%F:16.5%)
AEZHER (6,909) (54,336)
Non-deductible expenses AR A 3,237 271
Tax exempted revenue G U&= (289) (7,764)
Unrecognised temporary differences RERZEREE (37) 15
Unrecognised tax losses REER 2 T IBE 18 3,998 61,814
Taxation Fi18 — _
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 8. BAREEAEMLER

PARENT

The loss attributable to owners of the parent includes a loss
of HK$13,676,000 (2011: HK$377,386,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year and up to

the date of these consolidated financial statements (2077:

HK$NIl).

BARBEARBGLEEERREEIRE
13,676,000 . (=% — — F:
377,386,000;87C) - BERFNERER
A MR P EIE -

REARBERFHRAMBEHREBHY

BORNSEBKRE (—F——F  FF
L) e
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i

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the parent is based on the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 413,069,000 shares (2071: (restated)
278,633,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of the basic loss per share for the years of
2012 and 2011 has been adjusted to reflect the impact of the
capital reorganisation effected in November 2012 and rights
issue effected subsequent to the end of reporting period (see
note 31(a)).

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the parent is based on loss for the year of HK$41,877,000
(2011: loss of HK$329,308,000) and the denominators
detailed above in respect of weighted average number of
shares.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 as the
effect of all potential ordinary shares is anti-dilutive.

BRESE

BEREXEE

BRRER ARGSRERBEBIVIZE
N2 % 17413,069,0000 ( = F——4 :
(#ZE31/)278,633,0004%) & L HNHE F
HHETE -

HECE-CFRCE-—FZEHRE
REBERRA 2 ERRMEFSHESE
HAEE URBMA-ZT——F+— A%
TZBRABERNREHERBRET
2z 8 (RME313@)) °

HRAREB AEEERERNEEBIRZF
ME1841,877,00008 70 ( = F——4F -
#8329,308,000/% ) I £ X it B BB
DMEFHE 2 HDEFE -

SRBEEIE
HRE2HNBEEBREERESY
2 WHET——FRZIFE——F+=
A=+ HLLFEzSRESHEAS
MREREEHER -
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10. ¥ -BERRZE
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMERE RARRE AE wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Carrying amount FELH
At beginning of year 2011 RZTE——%1 - 217 192 409
Depreciation nE - (161) (192) (353)
At 31 December 2011 R_E——%F
+-ZB=+-H - 56 . >0
At 31 December 2011 RZE——4
+-A=+-H
Cost AR 1,247 1,016 2,219 4,482
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,247) (960) (2,219) (4,426)
- 56 - 56
Carrying amount RESHE ="
At beginning of year 2012 AZE—ZF) - 56 - 56 g
Additions RE - 16 - 16
Depreciation nE - (31) - (31) "
Lné
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-ZF s
+=-A=+-H - 4 - 4 a
g
At 31 December 2012 R=2-=f z
+ZA=t+-H &
Cost DN 1,247 1,032 2,219 4,498 S
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,247) (991) (2,219) (4,457)
- 4 - 41

Sy
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11. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/ASSOCIATES

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY

74

Eo
The interest in an associate/associates is set out below: RS R, e QR ZESET
NN
2012 2011
—ZE—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Share of net assets B EEFE 36,530 36,794
Realised upon disposal of a subsidiary HeE—FHE AR RFEIE - (4,546)
36,530 32,248
Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period is as R EPERBZBERRFBOT

follows:

Principal place

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

(I&£E))

3 of operation/ Class of shares held

i Name of associate Place of incorporation shares held by the Group  Principal activity
§, EEEfE

> GES

g TEEELY EBEREE

= BENFER LR AR L 3t B ik kY e h  ETEXE

gﬁ Golden Fame International Hong Kong Ordinary 40%  Logistic business
il Investment Group Limited

("Golden Fame")

5 SEBEREAERERAT &% Fol 40%  MRER
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. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/ASSOCIATES M. RA—EBEQAT HEQNT 2’
(Continued) = (&)
Summary of financial information of associates are as follows: BERRCHMBERBENT

Tianjin Kai Sheng

Golden Fame Automobile Service Co., Ltd. Total
EA RETHBREEBERAA b
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Z3-ZF “E--F “Z-Cf “E--% “E-CF “T-—%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Tan ThR THL THET T
Total assets EEOE 205,691 24,776 - - 205,691 224,776
Total liabilities afEEE (114,367) (144,155) - - (114,367) (144,155)
Net assets BEFE 91,324 80,621 - - 91,324 80,621
Group's share of net assets of A EEEH=AT
associates EEFE 36,530 32,48 - - 36,530 32,248
Total revenue gt 452,112 444,376 - 384,803 452,112 829,179
Total profit (loss) B (BR)ER 309 (2,168) - 3316 309 1,148
Group's share of results of REBEFHENTEE
associates 282 (764) - 1,071 282 307
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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12.

/6

s

LONG-TERM DEBT INVESTMENT

12. RPBEBEKRE

2012 2011
—E——F —EF——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Unlisted investments, FEMRE REHFHEREK
at amortised cost
Debt securities BT 2 280,051 -

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
acquired unsecured bonds in an aggregate principal amount
of HK$300 million issued by Mascotte Holdings Limited, an
independent third party company, at a cash consideration
of HK$265 million. According to the terms of the unsecured
bonds, the maturity date is 2 years from the issue date of
4 January 2012. At the maturity date, the issuer may elect
at its discretion to extend the term for another 5 years. The
unsecured bonds bear interest at 2.5% per annum for the first
2 years and 12.5% per annum afterwards for the extension
period of five years. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears. In
addition, the issuer may redeem part or all of the unsecured
bonds any time during the repayment term at principal
amount and interest accrued up to redemption date. During
the year ended 31 December 2012, an interest income from
long-term debt investment of HK$21,301,000 was recognised
to profit or loss.

REBEEZZE——-F+_A=1+—HLF
E AEEKE-—BBLE=ZFRAE
FEEEBERAFTMETACLER
300,000,000 T 2 MERES - He R
{8 /3265,000,000/% 7T < IR IB M IFESH
ZERCBEHAARETHA T —=
F—AMBRITME -REEA - #ITA
AMEEEETFHERAF - ERFE
HFREMFIRFNER25EFE MR E
B AFERBAIRF R EI12.5FE S
FEEREFZRIANT 1o BFITAT
REFHARERRASEMNEEER A
HEEr 2 A BEE D 2 EEBE
Sfo-NBE-_ZT——F+-A=+—8H
LtFE ERBEaTRIARBERRE
Z R B U A21,301,000/8 7T °
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13.BFEEE
Forestry
rights
Rt 1
HK$'000
FHET

Reconciliation of carrying amount IEHeRBEKE-—HE-_T—F
— year ended 31 December 2011 TZA=Z+—RILEEE

At beginning of the year REH 69,000
Amortisation B aH (1,408)
At end of the reporting period REREBERB 67,592

At 31 December 2011 R_T——F+-A=+—H
Cost (DN 82,500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses REt#E s R EBE (14,908)

67,592
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 13. BELEE (&)
Forestry
rights
K 3
HK$'000
FExT
Reconciliation of carrying amount RESEYHKR-B8EZ-F——F
- year ended 31 December 2012 TZA=+—BLEFE
At beginning of the year REH 67,592
Amortisation and impairment losses B OB ERE (587)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 19) LE—FEREA R (KaE19) (67,005)
At end of the reporting period RBEHRLRAB -
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE-Z-F+ZA=t—H
Cost N -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses 2 & 84 &R E & 1B -
3
2 -
3
=
(9]
§ The intangible assets represented the rights to (i) obtain 50% EREEBNATSIEREN: (VRGP E
o
c of forestry land use rights and forestry trees entitlement ARKEME ([FEH]) EMEEEMESF
o of three forestry sites in Simao District, Puer City, Yunnan [& = AR 2 R A RARAR R 2
< Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"); and (ii) 50%# & R (D15 72 S Mith 250% 7]
share 50% of distributable profits of these forests. 7K K o
3
]
all

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY

/8




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14. T HHEMBEE
The Group The Company
AEH NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®--f -—T——% C-B--f —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TR TR TET AT
At cost: R
Unlisted equity interest REBRIIZ LT
outside Hong Kong N 6,908 6,908 6,908 6,908
Unlisted equity interest in REBZINEMA L
a private limited ZIABRRARZ
company incorporated FEMBRAER
outside Hong Kong 14(a) 108,000 108,000 - -
114,908 114,908 6,908 6,908
Impairment loss recognised R ZREFHE (6,908) (6,908) (6,908) (6,908)
108,000 108,000 - - =
«
The unlisted investments represented long-term investments EEMEEENFAEERITZIELET %
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities. In the RAFEL 2 RHBE -EFRA BRI a
opinion of the directors, their fair values cannot be measured TR EZAE A EGITEEB A %
reliably because the range of reasonable fair value estimates BEZEM 2T S BT E W 3
is so significant and the probabilities of the various estimates FLETREZATFETRENFEHEE- <§
cannot be reasonably assessed. As a result, they are measured EiL - REmERAERB - FELMRER 8
at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting period. AR AR ERE - %

-y
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14 JHEEMBEE (£)

(Continued)

14(a) In 2011, the Group through its wholly-owned 4@ R ——F KAEBHEB
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subsidiary Equity Base Investments Limited acquired
4.79% (subsequently diluted to 3.76%) equity
interest in Hennabun Capital Group Limited (“HCG"),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and engaged in securities brokerage and provision of
finance, at a consideration of HK$108 million.

During the year, HCG entered into a share swap
agreement (the "Agreement”) with HEC Capital
Limited ("HEC"), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, and Allied Well Development Limited
("Allied Well”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. According to the Agreement, the parties
agreed to undergo the reorganisation through the
allotment and issue of 249,154,460 shares of HCG
to Allied Well in exchange for 249,154,460 shares in
HEC on the terms of the Agreement and to cancel the
old shares of HCG. Upon the completion of the share
swap transaction, the Group held 2.86% (subsequently
diluted to 2.03%) equity interest in HEC and ceased to
hold any equity interest in HCG. The principal activities
of HEC are provision of financial services, trading of
investment and property investment.

H2>&MH B QA Equity Base
Investments Limited i&
Hennabun Capital Group Limited
(THCG ]~ RBRLES
MRz RE REIFHFLEL
RIRMHEE X5) 24.79% A1
W (HEW#EE3.76%)  KE
#108,000,0007% 7T ©

RERN HCGHEHEC Capital
Limited ([HEC] - —fI A M S &
EiEftak sz 2 2 7F]) RAllied Well
Development Limited ([Allied
Well ] —BRREBREXES T
B S22 A R ET 3 — 0 # Bk 13
E(IzZBaEl) BEZBZE -
NS B EETEMR REZB
2 2 g A Allied Wellfd 2% 1% 3%
17249,154,4600K HCGR& n - #
HX249,154,460 K HEC A 17 » I 7
HEHCGH ) - NI RR 32 5 T K
% AEBMIBBEHECZ2.86% K
i (A m#8E2.03%) -
MABFBEHCGHE M R A
HECZ X ZXBARESBMR
B REEBERMERE-
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14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14. I EEMBEE (&)
(Continued)
14(a) (Continued) 14(a) (#&)
Details of the equity investee of which the carrying EHeHEBLAEEEERE
amount exceeds 10% of the total assets of the Group 10% 2 REEZEZIHERGNZE
at 31 December 2012 were as follows: ——F+-A=+t—Hz=HEBmN
T

Proportion of

the nominal

value of issued

ordinary

shares held

Company name Place of incorporation Class of shares held by the Group
rEE

e 1T

EEREE

NEER = AR SZ 3t B F 35 IR 43 38 ) Baok

HEC Cayman Islands Ordinary Shares 2.03%
HEMS R
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

82

s

15. RESIRBRAOFEREZMBEE

PROFIT OR LOSS E
2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt & THER T T
Held for trading, equity securities F{EEBEZ&EB L™
listed in Hong Kong IR A F 5
At beginning of year REY] 402,884 393,003
Additions A 246,083 1,067,427
Disposals HE (177,555) (731,136)
Fair value adjustments N EARE (36,164) (326,410)
At the end of the reporting period N E AR H 435,248 402,884
Designated upon initial RERARABEEIEZ
recognition, unlisted FETABERERE
convertible notes
At beginning of year REH] 42,454 58,321
Additions A = 40,025
Disposals e (24,433) (35,570)
Fair value adjustments NFEEFAE 1,448 (20,322)
At the end of the reporting period RiREHLER A 15(a) 19,469 42,454
Total FEE 454,717 445,338

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on quoted
market prices in active markets at the end of the reporting

period.

FHRAES 2 A FETIRERE A
REEEEMIGHARMESE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss exceeded
10% of the Group’s total assets. In addition, the Group’s
shareholding in each of the investees did not exceed 20% of
the issued shares of the investees.

15(a) Valuation basis of unlisted convertible notes

The debt investments are unlisted convertible notes
issued by several listed companies in Hong Kong
and designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition as they
form part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives which satisfies the conditions
for designation. At the end of the reporting period,
the convertible notes were revalued by independent
professional valuer using the Binomial Tree Pricing
Model. The contractual maturity of the convertible
notes is used as an input to this model.

Bt %% R MY R

15. AERIRR AT EREZHKE
E(E)
RBEHERE  AEBRBREKREZEAQ
TEHRECVBEENEBAERNEER
BEZ10% o Wi AEERSEZIRE
NEIZRENEBRZEETIRE QA
BETKRGN 220% °

15(a) FLHARKREBEZEEEE

BEBRERZHAELE LT AR %
TZHREMARBRER BER
BHREBKES — A LK
ARTET R FEEEDBKE
HZ2EH—"n BEBHRERE
RERAREEDBEANBRIRR
RFPEREZHBEE-RBS
HERA JEREELABY
EXMERER Z B ARIRRE
ETEGB-ARREBRZEHOE
HIRE BEREL 28R -

Convertible Convertible

note A note B Total

THRREEA ARREEB @t

Principal amount (HK$'000): KB (FETL): 4,500 17,000 21,500
Date of maturity: ZHH - 9 December 30 November
2013 2013
“E-=F “Z-=F
+ZANA +—-A=+AH
Coupon rate: E- 8% per annum Zero coupon
2ZE

Early redemption clause:

BH8E
(i)

(i

83
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Bt %% R MY R

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15. RIERIIRRAFEREZHKE
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) E(E)
15(a) Valuation basis of unlisted convertible notes 15(a) kLT AEREE2HEREE
(Continued) (%)
Convertible Convertible
note A note B Total
TRREEA ARREEB @t
Volatility of underlying 1EH LR R
listed shares: 67.26% 53.28%
Risk-free interest rate (with ERBRFIX (2REBIMNE
reference to Hong Kong EeEH):
Exchange Fund Note): 0.085% 0.083%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiEL THEL
Fair value at R-ZEB--§+-A=+-H
31 December 2012 AN |
Convertible notes EE &L 4,362 15,107 19,469
0) The issuer of convertible note A may redeem the (i) Al AR ZEE AT A AR
whole or any part of the notes at any time after BITHHRG —FRER
1 year from the issue date by giving not less BEHTADREREEERA
than seven business days prior notice. FHBEBM BRI ST

DEPESL

(i) The issuer of convertible note B may redeem the (ii) Al AR ZE R BEE 1T A A] B
whole or any part of the notes at any time from TRHREZREA ILER
the issue date to the maturity date by giving not BEHTAOREREEERA
less than seven business days prior notice. FHRBEBM BRI ST
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE 16. RMEB AT 2= W B
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES Vil NGIE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - A - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE UR B JBB A R FR B 2,333,146 2,296,287
2,333,146 2,296,287
Less: Provision for amounts due from JB - TE B B 1 B) 5k I8 B
subsidiaries (1,415,952) (1,414,487)
917,194 881,800
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non- FEUL, FENHI B A R FUE A EET NG
interest bearing and the settlement of which is neither B WEGHE| IR KA R AT RAR KB
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. &
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Bt %% R MY R

16. RME A 2 #xm B M
B ARRE (&)
ARREEMBAAR T ——F+=

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2012 were as follows:

A=+—BZEENT:

Issued and
Place of fully paid Percentage of
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BRTRBERE
WELR LM AR S AMER  AADFERIERAIL FEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# &
Equity Base Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
RERTES (Ep REZR
Forefront Automotive Services Hong Kong HK$20 - 100% Trading of motor vehicle
Company Limited accessories
BARERBERAR B 208 7T REZRHES
Forefront Finance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 - 100% Money-lending
BAMBERAE Bk 2,000,000 7T HiE
Forefront International Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100% Provision of
(Hong Kong) Limited Ordinary share management services
HK$6,000,000 for the Group
Non-voting
deferred shares (i)
Bh(BE)ERRR 5t 100,000/ 7t % i i AASERIERE RS
6,000,000 7T
ERFERTRNO)
Loyal Fine Ltd British Virgin Islands us$1 100% - Investment holding
EBRAHES (E REER
Sino Wealthy Ltd British Virgin Islands us$1 - 100% Trading of securities
EBRAHES (E EHEE
Smart Oriental Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
EBRAHES %7 REER
Note: Bt 5

(i) Holders of deferred shares have no rights to vote at general meetings or

receive any dividend. Upon winding up, they are entitled to one half of
the balance of the company’s assets after HK$100,000,000,000 has been
distributed to holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any

time during the year ended 31 December 2012.

() BERMHZHEABEERRAEG LERE IR
mAERREMRS - EERK ZAREETF
100,000,000,000/%& 7T # & £ AR 5 Ik T & i@
BRZFHBEAN MBpEZ —FHEEROZFHE

AFHe

EMBRARNREBE-_T——F+_A
=+ —BIEFERNEMBEETETED

BITEEEAR-
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17. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to

Bt %% R MY R

17. EWE R

ERARR 2 ERARBERGRKRE
=
=

repayment schedules. The balance comprises loans receivable B AHAERBERE TIE R ZEW
from: B
2012 2011
—2-=F —F——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FERT FHEIT
Third parties F£= (a), (b) 47,399 184,822
Allowance for doubtful debts RN (d) (21,675) (20,676)
Balances due within one year and FARBEE -RN—FR
included in current assets T H 2 A BR (0), (e) 25,724 164,146
Notes: B 5

(a)

()

At the end of the reporting period, (1) loans receivable carry effective
interest rate of 5% per annum (2071: 5% to 6% per annum); (2) loan
balances of HK$21,675,000 (2071: HK$1,421,000) were overdue and
fully impaired; (3) the remaining loan balances of HK$25,724,000 (2071
HK$183,401,000) are within the respective maturity dates (see also note
(b) below); and (4) loan balances of HK$25,724,000 are secured and the
fair value of the securities pledged to the Group is HK$12,145,000 (2071
loan balances of HK$183,401,000 are secured and fair value of the
securities pledged to the Group is HK$46,782,000).

During the year, additional allowance of HK$1,035,000 (2071:
HK$19,255,000) was provided on the Group's secured loans receivable
balance. The impairment for secured loan was determined taken into
account the value of the securities pledged for the loans and the amount
recovered from the borrowers up to the date of the authorisation of these
consolidated financial statements.

The directors assessed the collectability of loans receivable at the end
of the reporting period individually with reference to borrowers’ past
collection history and current creditworthiness. Based on the assessment
with reference to the collaterals secured by the borrowers and the
amount recovered from the borrowers up to the date of the authorisation
of these consolidated financial statements, the collectability of loans
receivable amounting to HK$21,675,000 (2011: HK$20,676,000) was in
doubt and provision amounting to HK$1,035,000 (2071: HK$19,255,000)
was made accordingly. In the directors’ opinion, there was no indication
of deterioration in the collectability of the remaining amount of
HK$25,724,000 (2011: HK$164,146,000) and thus no additional
allowance was considered necessary.

RBEHERE WERERZEBRMNER
FHERSE (ZF——F: FFE5EZ6/E) :
(2)E K #5#:21,675,0008 7T (= F— —4:
1,421,000/ ) Tyi@ #A R (430 2 2 BUR (B
(38 T B 3UA: £4225,724,0008 L (= F ——
F 183,401,000 L) I EBE (B R T X
B sE(b)) ¢ R (4)E TR AL £:25,724,000% T A
BER CEBTFAEEZESFZ2ATFE
£12,145,0008 0 (= F——F  BEH &
183,401,000/ 7T 5 B HEIR + B T K E[F
ZEERZ NP E 746,782,000 T ) ©

RERN BRAEEAERERERAL S
RSN #51,035,0008 0 (ZF— —F ¢
19,255,000/ ) - 1S ERBZE L Fin & 015
RRBETIE B IR E L KR 2 #3
BEREKREEBERAZRER AEED
BETERERERLBERE

EENBREHERALBERABEZERL
8% IR 2 5 ARE - (8537 (4 88 & 4k B fE Ut
ER-RELBERABRZERAREE T
LAV BRRERTZEAHILERMERAK
B2 & FE1EL 2 77 - B RK21,675,0007%
TL (= F——14:20,676,000% ) 2 "] W ]
12 JZ AR BE - [ M e #81,035,00008 7T (=
F——4:19,25500087T) - ERER AL &
PR FB R UL Bl 2 5H25,724,00008 T ( —F——
iF 1 164,146,000/ ¢ ) 7 HE LR ERE - EA
TEH BB OB -

8/
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

17. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 17. EWWER (&
Notes: (Continued) MizE: (&)
(d)  The movements of allowance for doubtful debts are analysed as follows: (d) RIEBHEHOTOT:
2012 2011
—E-C-fF —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Allowance for doubtful debts RIR B
Balance at beginning of year FHEH 20,676 90,817
Increase in allowance (note (b)) B (M kb)) 1,035 19,255
Amount recovered on secured loan BB ERRESRERE - (89,370)
Amount recovered on unsecured loan BEIEEREREE (36) (26)
(36) (89,396)
Net charge (release) X (#0 ) F8E 999 (70,141)
21,675 20,676
-
(]
A
g (e) The aging analysis of loan receivables that neither individually nor () WHEERXEEBHERA/DREZEKERZ
3 collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: RETAT
$
o)
c
A 2012 2011
= —B-=f -
;t? HK$'000 HK$'000
i _
5 TR Fit T
i
a
E Neither past due nor impaired S 8 B SR (E 25,724 164,146
1
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide N #8560 A ol R (B 2 B WK TS R BRI A 8
range of borrowers for whom there was no recent history of default and HELEmMEBEZZERA EEERITE
there had not been significant change in credit quality. These loans are EAREY ZFERENANEARN (ZF——
repayable within 6 months (2071 within 6 months). FNEAA)EE-

B H——&— 2102 L1HOd3Y TVNNNY

88




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

18. OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. H {th lE Yt K18
The Group The Company
REE NN
2012 2011 2012 2011

=F-—=F —T—F Z®B-=fF T —F
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TAT TER TAT

Deposits, prepayments and &% - BT RIE K&

other debtors E A & R 3K 4,260 2,677 258 343
19. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 19. HE—EHNE QA

On 8 June 2012, the Group entered into a conditional sale RZZE——FNANB ~XEETLAE
and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of the BREEERRE NEEBAR MBS
entire equity interest of Richful Zone International Limited = RAIHEARRRINB A 7 L5 E R
("Disposal Group”), a subsidiary of the Company, to an BRAF ([HEEE]) 2R AR -
independent third party company, at a cash consideration of /& R(EA50,000,0008 7T Fit - &
HK$50 million. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the EECEERBBERASEEZZZ—=
Disposal Group were classified as held for sale in the Group's FHOAMBREANDBARFELE B
2012 interim financial statements. As the selling price was REEEBCEERNEFEEZIRE
lower than the carrying amount of net assets of Disposal S HEFRNERERTRERRERE
Group, an impairment loss of HK$16,937,000 was recognised 16,937,000/ 7T

to profit or loss for the year.
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Bt %% R MY R

19. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 19. HE—RBEBLR (&)
The disposal of this subsidiary was completed in September IHBERARERZE—ZFLATHE
2012 and no further gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary E UTERBZPE—SHRLE—MHHK
was recognised to profit or loss. The net assets disposed of at BRRERKEKEIB-REK BT
the completion date were as follows: EZREEMT:
2012
—EBE-——F
HK$'000
FERT
Carrying amount of net assets of Disposal Group: HEEEFEEZIRE S5
Intangible assets BVEE 67,005
Less: Impairment allowance ORI E R (16,937)
50,068
Other creditors and accruals H M ER I R EETE R (68)
Cash consideration received EWERERE 50,000
In September 2011, the Group disposed of the entire equity RZE——FNWA AEER—EEL
interest in a subsidiary, Crown Creation Limited, to an E=FHHEWE 2R A Crown Creation
independent third party at a consideration of HK$100 million. Limitedz 2B AEm RE A
A net gain on disposal of approximately HK$17,661,000 was 100,000,000 T - MBI E T ——F
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2011. Please TZAZT-ALFEBREENRF
refer to 2011 annual report for details. BE#4)17,661,0008 L5 1BE2H %
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Notes to the Financial Statements

20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

21.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF Scheme”) which is
a defined contribution scheme managed by independent
trustees. The assets of the fund are held separately from those
of the group companies and are managed by independent
professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 from January to
May 2012 and HK$1,250 from June to December 2012 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.

Contributions of approximately HK$148,000 (2071:
HK$143,000) were made during the year ended 31 December
2012.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had no material forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefits scheme in future years (20717: Nil).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in
respect of unused tax loss of HK$1,118,356,000 (2077:
HK$1,094,128,000) relating to the Company and certain
Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The tax losses have
no expiry date under current tax legislation. The deferred
tax asset has not been recognised due to uncertainty of its
recoverability.

Bt %% R MY R

20. REMKEE

21.

AEBBETEES 2 AFIE 2 M H 1%
NEREE ([RERFTE]) &ZEHET)
HBYXTAETEZ AT HAGTE %
BES7BERAEBRERRIZEEDH
A THBYEXESLRERE BB
wiEEHE AEE(BEX)RHEEBA
BERFEAEREMNZRE SBF
AmaEestEELBERNEERAS%
ZHR-BEEEBZEAHRKERR =
T-——F—AZFRAA1,0008 T K=
E-—HERNAETZARI,2508 7T B
o MR B FEIEE -

REBREHEE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—
BIEFEEDR Z -4 A148,000% 7T
(ZF——4:143,000/%7T) °

RZE——F+-_A=+—H KEEHIL
EERDSBERATHIDARKRFE 2
BREFEEIRR (T ——F ) -

ELERIE

REBUTEREBARATARETHRE
BEHMK LB AR Z A AR E
E5181,118,356,0008 70 ( = F — — 4 -
1,094,128,000;% L ) lERIBEEFH B E
o RIBEIRATHE - BITEE BN =R B
Hi IR IE R TH & & A R B (A AT Y e
R TR

91
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22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. A&
2012 2011
=t St —E—-F

No. of shares No. of shares

gt L] Bk
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Tt TET T TAL

Authorised: EE:
At beginning of year RET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEBLOETZERBR 500,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
Capital reorganisation (Note a) RAEA (Mita) 4,500,000,000 - 450,000,000 -
At end of the year REH

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each SREE.01ETZ ERBR

(2011 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 (ZE——%.BREE
each) 0.01FT2 2K 5,000,000,000 5,000,000 500,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR:
At beginning of year RE]

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECETZERR 3,654,742 36,547 4,060,825 406,082
Capital reorganisation (Note a) RAZEH (Hia) (3,618,195) (39,800) (3,654,743) (402,022)
Issue of shares on rights issue EREETRR - - 3,248,660 32,487
Issue of shares under share option BEEREFHEIRG

scheme (Note 23(b)) (H3E23(b)) 365,474 3,655 - -

At end of the reporting period REERLERA
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FRAEB.ETL LRk
(2011 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 (ZF——%: BFEE001

-
o
)
m
m
o)
o
b4
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fo)
o)
o
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o
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m
o
i
S
g
at
=
>}
al

each) AT BHK) 402,021 402 3,654,742 36,547

Note: Bt 5 -

(@) At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 14 August (@) REARREZZFT—-FNATHBARTZR
2012, the resolutions in respect of the share consolidation, the capital REFRIRE - IR EZIEBRARR RS
reduction and the capital subdivision of the Company (the “Capital A0 RABRRBRMDIFA ([IRAEMA]) 2
Reorganisation”) were approved by the shareholders. The effects of the RER - RABHZFENT

Capital Reorganisation were as follows:

() Under the share consolidation, every 10 issued shares of par value () RERMEH HE10REREME.O
of HK$0.01 each was consolidated into one adjusted issued share BLZBETRNDE M A —REMEO
of par value of HK$0.1 each. B2 IEABRBEEHITRMGD -

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i) Immediately following the share consolidation, the par value of
each issued consolidated share will be reduced from par value
of HK$0.1 each to par value of HK$0.001 each by cancellation
of the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.099 on each issued
consolidated share by the way of reduction of capital.

(iii) ~ The credit arising from such capital reduction was applied to set-off
the accumulated deficit of the Company with the balance (if any)
to be transferred to the distributable capital redemption reserve
account of the Company.

(iv)  Under the share subdivision, each of the authorised but unissued
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each was subdivided into ten
adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.001 each.

23. SHARE OPTIONS

(@) Share option scheme

A share option scheme was approved by shareholders on
6 August 2007 which will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on 6 August 2007.

Under the share option scheme, the Company may
grant to directors and employees of the Group and any
other persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the share option scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time. The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the share option scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue, the General Scheme
Limit, at the date of the passing of the relevant ordinary
resolution. If any option is to be granted to connected
person(s), it must be approved by independent non-
executive directors or independent shareholders as the
case may be.

Bt %% R MY R

22. R& (&
MEE: (48)

(i BEEROAEME  ARAEDR 2 755
HHBREBETAMRGO ZHRKA
0.099% T I EREBRITAEMHRNZ
EEB TR0 1B TTHDRE FR0.001%

JL °©

(i)  BRBRABURAES 2 ERBIREAR
Az RitEat % () AIERER
REZ AT KE AR FE R IR

(iv) REROIFA SREE0NET.LIA
EERBETRAEDFATREREE
0.001/8 7T Z A& F R AD ©

23. B
(a) BREE

BREFIN _ZEZTLF/\AXA
ERFRIE B-TZLFNAR
BEEAR BH0F -

REBBETE ARRAIRES
AEEREENEZSEERMERR
LRI EHAREELRERZE
Al E Al A TR BB A - E T AR
ERE RS 8 R AR BRI A
PrrgERT IR ERTTR Z 2 A0ETT
ESNE R M B IT 2B BE LR
AEHTREBEBIREBHITROAR
Z230% ° BT ERIFEAER 8 N
ARBEMEMBRESSREZ
EEEREm A BT ZRDAES
KTFEBRNEBHBERRER
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BB LFRITETLBIMR
(ARIERME ) L

93

i
(4]
=
T
%
=
ulg
fa)
w
=
=
a
o
=)
o
e
(O]
=
z
]
T
w
w
o
o
w

-y

ANNUAL REPORT 2012




-
o
)
m
m
o)
o
b4
=
fo)
o)
o
Cc
o
C
=
=
m
o
i
S
g
at
=
b
al

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

04

(a) Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted to a specifically identified
single grantee under the share option scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue.

Under the share option scheme, the options granted may
be accepted by a participant within 14 days from the
date of such offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. Options
may be exercised at any time no later than 10 years
from the date of grant. The subscription price for shares
payable on exercise of share options granted under the
share option scheme shall be a price determined by the
directors, but shall in any event be not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (i)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of share.

23. B HE(£2Z)
(a) BRESE (&)

PAER+ 1@ A B AR 5 i A A At
AR EE —ARARLZ
BRE (BECITE  SEEEKRT
EREERE) R 2R &E=8AE T
BHARETRNEEZ1% -

RIEERESE RO ZERER
H2EENOBEHBYEIT4ER
BEM-ZARLBREZENRA
SATBTARE - BRERAEL A
HARE 105 MBERT 1T (% - IR 1R BB A 2
AR B EITEREN
BOREBEERESEET HEELH
BRATAEER T Z2&EE ()
BORBREBEOBREM (LERRS
B) i P g B MERIR I
B: (i RERFEHEL A HA
TR 5 B EBIME R RERA
W2 FHWRHIE: KD EE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

23. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
(b) Share options granted during the year

(c)

On 31 January 2012, 365,474,270 share options were
granted under the share option scheme to qualified
participants. The share price at the date of grant is
HK$0.103. The share price at the date of grant is
the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading date
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.
The weighted average closing price immediately prior
to exercise date is HK$0.1122. The options were fully
exercised on 7 February 2012 and the Company received
proceeds of HK$38 million. The weighted average share
price at the date of exercise is HK$0.110. No share
options granted under the share option scheme were
outstanding at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of share option granted at the grant date
was HK$0.00018 per share, which is calculated using the
Black-Scholes model with the following inputs:

Share price at the grant date HK$0.103
Exercise price HK$0.1042
Expected volatility 8.492%
Expected option period 8 days

Risk free rate 0.079%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
of the Company over the expected option period.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value of the share options
granted.

Bt %% R MY R

23. B HE(£2Z)
(b) ERABHZBERE

(c)

WRZE—=—F—F=+—H"
365,474,27017 5 IR #E AR 4% BE AR 1
EIRTEEARKRSEE - REUER
ZIREA0I103B L - HEERBZK
BIHROEZEBRERLE B EATR
SRR ME BETEAR
HART 2 M F U T E A0.11227
Lo EEREER T ——F=
At BRERETE AAFKRZ
X 78 438,000,000 7T o A 1T 1F A
Bz i T RE R0 T
RZE——FR-ZT——F+=A
=+—H MEREERETER
HH T e R AT 2 B AR o

BREATERRBR

ERLERENREBHZAFE
A0%0.000188 7T JHiRE T 71
BUAmKE - Sl ER &

L BB IRE 0.103/8 7T
TEE 0.104278 7T
T8 HR R @ ©8.492%
T8 HA B 20 HA : 8H

12 5 B ) & 0.079%

BHIRB AR AR A Z RR
ABEREAEE - TEHARRK
EHAUHCELBREZATER
REAZE -
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24. RESERVES 24, #1E
The Company KAFE
Share Capital Capital
Share option  contributed Capital  redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve deficit Total
ROEE BRERE EXBAERH BEXfE EXRERE By L @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THx THT FTET FHT TR TR
At 1 January 2011 RZF——%—-A—-H
Beginning of year F1) 1,177,654 - 16,692 4,492 1,173 (746,864) 453,147
Comprehensive loss 2EESR
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (377,386) (377,386)
Total comprehensive FREAFRARE
loss for the year - - - - - (377,386) (377,386)
Transactions with owners EEHEAETZRS
Issue of shares on rights HRBRTRG
issues, net of expenses (BMBRAZ) 361,413 - - - - - 361,413
Capital reorganisation A ER - - - - - 402,022 402,022
Total transactions with FREFEAERTZRSAE
owners for the year 361,413 - - - - 402,022 763,435
At 31 December 2011 and  R=FT——F+=-A=+—H
= at 1 January 2012 ER-Z——%—f—H 1,539,067 - 16,692 4,492 1,173 (722,228) 839,196
2
E Comprehensive loss 2EESR
% Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (13,676) (13,676)
$
2 Total comprehensive FR2EAFELE
; loss for the year - - - - - (13,676) (13,676)
<
m
o Transactions with owners HEFAETZRS
gﬁ Share option granted BRI ZERE (M323(0)
(note 23(c) - 67 - - - - 67
ot Exercise of share options TTERRAE (FE23(0))
E (note 23(b)) 34,492 (67) - - - - 34,425
a Capital reorganisation B AER (K5220)
(note 22(a)) - - - - - 39,800 39,800
Total transactions with FREZFAETZRZEE
owners for the year 34,492 - - - - 39,800 74,292
At 31 December 2012 R-2--%+=ZA=+-H 1,573,559 - 16,692 4,492 1173 (696,104) 899,812
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25. CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) 25. REMEB (FFRA)RE
OPERATIONS
2012 2011
—E——fF —ZE——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before taxation B 0 B B 1R (41,877) (329,308)
Interest income B U A (21,666) (581)
Share of results of e — R E AR
an associate/associates /Nl (282) (307)
Impairment loss on assets held by PEEEMBEEZ
a Disposal Group B EE 16,937 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHBARZAF - (17,661)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  #7T & & # #5512 618 1,761
Write back of other payable B [0 5 fib fE A 5RI8 - (23,910)
Net charge (release) provision for RIBIRBEFH S (BB ))F58
bad and doubtful debts 9299 (70,141)
Changes in working capital: LEEe s #E:
Financial assets at fair value through REERIZATEERE 2
profit or loss BB E (9,379) 5,986
Other receivables H {th jE W 5008 241 17,743
Other payables H b SRR 4,292 (2,508)
Loans receivable W B R 137,423 56,567
Cash generated from (used in) ReEmMB(FRARE
operations 87,306 (362,359)

26.

MARGIN FACILITIES
As at 31 December 2012,

margin facilities of

HK$219,381,000 (2011: HK$199,683,000) from regulated
securities brokers were granted to the Group under which

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$434,762,000 (2071: HK$445,338,000) were treated as
collateral for the facilities granted. The Group has not utilised
any of these facilities as at 31 December 2012 (2011.: HK$Nil).

26. FTEME
RZE—=ZF+ZRAR=+—8 "%
HEBFLBLEMAESEARLAE®
%219,381,0008 L (=F — — 4
199,683,000;& )  #H It RIEB&HIRIE
NHERIE M EEA34,762,000% 7T
( —F——4F :445,338,000,87C ) i85
ERpEZE R R-E——F+=
A=+—HB AKBETEHHITMZE
ME(ZF——F - FT¥Erx)-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %% R MY R

27. COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating leases

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases, which typically run for an initial period of 1-3 years.
None of these leases includes contingent rentals. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as
follows:

27. &iE
EHEERE
AEBUL—BNS A —F=F L4
MERRASEYE - EBHEELTOE
KRS - RIS EERR  REERT
AT SF N 4G 4 S 7 K R BT R LA
TEHE A

2012 2011

—E——fF —EF——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Within one year —F KN 1,593 861
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZFERTFE (BEEEMSE) 82 149
1,675 1,010

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year the Group had the following significant
related party transactions:

28. BEAERZF
BRI EREEMIDFIHESE  AEH
RERNEITZEABEATISOT

Remunerations of key management personnel: TEEBABZHE:
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Employee benefits expenses EERMMZ 2,059 2,013

Contributions to defined contribution RERKETEIHEK

schemes 42 36
2,101 2,049
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s principal financial instruments are available-for-
sale financial assets, long-term debt investment, financial
assets through profit or loss, loans receivable, bank balances
and cash. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise and maintain finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial instruments such as other
receivables and other payables, which arise directly from its
business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to
a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group also monitors the market price risk arising
from all financial instruments.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed securities and unlisted convertible notes included
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk.

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted stock
prices had been 5% (2077: 5%) higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group's net loss
would decrease or increase by HK$22,736,000 (2077:
HK$22,267,000) as a result of changes in fair value of
investments. The Group's sensitivity to equity price has not
changed significantly from the prior year.

Bt %% R MY R

29. IS E K EE

AEBZIENBIARTHEENH
BE RHEHKRE REBERREE 2R
BEE BRER RITEFRRS 1L
EMBIAZIERBIRASEZE
HKEEMMEERE - AEEESE THM
MBETE WEZRBEERISGELZ
B 8 SRR TR Ko B A FE N RO0R

AEBYKTEMELEZ T BRARBK
EBRR- EERRERBDESRER EF
T RYAREERNEERR XN
SEAEZARAERE - EFERE
LA BB B e AT K 1% E B R OR
ERABRSHIN T - AREFEER
FEMBTAMEL 2 TIHERER-

IR 18 /R B

AEEZEERRBRERE EMESFEER
AFARBRREATEREZYBHEE
ZIFEMABRRE - AR DR
BERERRERE -

RBEHERB W& FTRARE LAk
TBS% (ZE——F:5%) EFMA
HMBHTE2BERT AKEZEH
EFEBRABRE AT EE S MR
g 1% 1N22,736,0008 L (= F——F -
22,267,000;%7) ° AN B AR B 2 BUR%
BERATFLENEEE -
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. i RBRER (&)
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Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock prices or other
relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to equity
price risk in existence at that date. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that none
of the Group's securities investments would be considered
impaired as a result of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables,
and that all other variables remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2011.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The Group has adopted procedures in
extending credit terms to loan borrowers and in monitoring its
credit risk. The credit policy on extending credit terms to loan
borrowers includes assessing and evaluating loan borrowers’
creditworthiness and financial standing. Management also
closely monitors all outstanding debts and reviews the
collectability of other receivables periodically. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group has a concentration of credit
risk as 33% (2071: 12%) and 100% (2011: 56 %) of the total
loans receivable was due from the Group’s largest borrower
and the three (2071: five) largest borrowers respectively.

100

BERR (&)

GURRE 2 AT T5 R AR A (B =k L A AR BE R R
BYNREHERA LR SEAREE
MmERE  WEANE B ZBERE - g
B iR ARERE 2 A FEER
EEEnat Rl ediitd
MEMES AEEZEHFRETER
18 B8 s 22 T 455 45 B S H b 4 B LB
2 & M A]BE TN J8 M AR VR - A R P
BEMEHRIE  FMEHIEEEEY
TRRA R SR T #5 15 B AR R R B = B T
FEREHERAMUARNZAEA LR
B DM ELER T ——F14
EE

FERE

SERBRIEEBARERITEEREEN
AEBRBZET BLEALEESREE
BrRBR AEBEOEKETHBLET
ERBRAZEERZERF WERE
HEERB L TERERAREHZ
FEERREEIAERGFAERERAZ
EAERVBRA - EEENSRIE
T B WK YR B T8 & E HA 2% B H b fE
WREZ REER - RREHERA
AEBZEERBRET EBRERERE
FHE33% (ZF——F:12%)%100%
(ZF——F:56% ) D RlREAEEZ
BAEBRAR=ZR(ZF——F: AX)
fBERA
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. i RBRER (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the Group’s credit risk arising from long-term debt
investment, the management considers the credit risk to
be low taking into account the financial positions of the
investees.

The Group has limited credit risk with its money deposited
in financial institutions and brokers, which are leading and
reputable and are assessed as having low credit risk. The
Group has not had any significant loss arising from non-
performance by these parties in the past and management
does not expect so in the future.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the

FERR (&)
WASRERARMEFRREMNELEZEE
Rams EEERG MEIZRERT
ZHBIRRRE  RBEERRTR -

AEERERBBRELZEREYEZ
EERRBR REARZFERMEER
ReHREEHULRBE BXERE
1é§ﬂ5ﬁ°$‘§lL?3EjtﬂlﬁE§/\i
BTEEMEEZEANEE M
@TEEHE(&DTT@&EE%%I@/Rf’

FEERRzESEERVBHRRAANZE

carrying amount of each financial asset in the financial B EEZIRMERE-
statements.
Liquidity risk RBESER

Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group is unable
to meet its short-terms obligations. Liquidity risk is minimal
and is managed by matching the payments and receipts
cycles. The Group's operations are financed mainly through its
business activities.

All the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company at
the end of the reporting period are repayable on demand.

mEEEREBEAREENETESH
BEfzRAB -mHEcRABRMTRIE"
TiE Bl A ER R R B INIAE 12 -
AEBzEEXTERAMETDREE

jﬁ_o

RBREHERD  NEE
BV HAEYEERER

KA RBZ P
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29. UHEBRER (&)
Capital management ERER
The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEEERERAZ BN RREAREE R
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern BEGE WARRERER AEEE
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages BHEREBWIFLAZE 2ERRKE
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including AT BB 1A IR BR AR IR B AR S BT T AR
payment of dividend to shareholders, return capital to SHEEENRALBEE BE-E—=
shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce FRZTE——F+TZA=T—HIEFE
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or WEENEBEZR BERIIEF -
processes during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity REBRBEHER AN X (LEBF
capital ratio, which is net debt divided by adjusted capital. The BRAGCHAERRAE) ERER R
debt-to-equity capital ratios at the end of the reporting period EHERAZEHERARNLE AT

were as follows:

2012 2011
—2-=F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
3
! Other payables H fth & A SR IE 7,627 3,403
% Less: Bank balances and cash i IRITEGF MRS (49,411) (138,183)
§ Net debt &1 %5 (41,784) (134,780)
5
g
% Total equity fix 7 4818 951,107 954,837
a Debt-to-equity capital ratio EFEER A R N/ATiE A N/AT 33 A

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and
2011.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as held for trading) is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The carrying values of loan and other receivables, long-term
debt investment and other payables are approximately their
fair values.

Fair value disclosures

The following presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2012
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments;

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data;

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.

Bt %% R MY R

29. U REBER (&)

AVE
FAMBIARRAR-E——FR=
T——F+-A=+-AZATEER
L LS

REBMISEEEZ M T A (HImEFE
BEE)ZRAFEDRENRERERA
Pz mEAR AEEMFUBEE
ERZTHERE/ENZEAE

ERREMEYTIE  RMEHRERE
N RIBEZ IREEREL A FERE -

ATFEEE

TXEINEATFEFEZHMBEIAR S
E-——F+ZA=+—HZREE WX
REBVBREEBNETR [MBIA:
WEER|IMRAETEZELENQAFESZHR
FlOE ERBEVBEIAZAFED
REBEATENEFEEAVEZEER
BARBBEEAFEDE - BHEL
AEWT :

o BRI (BBMB) :ERAERTS
AR TR BiE GRERE)
HEYATE:

o AR :EREBRMSTEUNY
TAZHRE SIMAEERBAERRB
BEZXERERAIBETISEE
ZEET AT EZ RFE:

o FH=(HEHR) - EREEME

RBAHBAFERABRENHH
BzhERAFEZAFE
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 2. I EBER (£)
Fair value disclosures (Continued) AFEFRE (&)
Assets measured at fair value R FEFGTECEE

31 December

2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-Cf
+=A=t-H Al — ®A= HA=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Financial assets at fair value REZRELATEREZ
through profit or loss BBEE
~ Equity securities —BRAES 435,248 435,248 - -
~ Unlisted convertible notes —EEmAURRERE 19,469 = 19,469 =
454,717 435,248 19,469 -
31 December
2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
3 —T——F
G +ZB=+-H HEI— 4 FH=
g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
§ THET THET THET THET
o
$
s Financial assets at fair value RERERATEREY
o through profit or loss MHEE
< - Equity securities —RrAES 402,884 402,884 - -
— Unlisted convertible notes - EMARERE 42,454 - 42,454 -
3
>}
a4 445,338 402,884 42,454 -
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, there RBE_TE——_FR-_T——F+H
was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value —F+—HLEFE UERARAFEFER
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair Bl — MR — 2 T hEE R
value measurements. NMEGAFEFERF=2TEE -

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has evaluated the
performance of operating segments and to allocate resources
to those segments based on the Group's internal reporting in
respect of these segments. The executive directors consider
investing, securities trading and provision of financing services
as the Group’s major operating segments which securities
trading and other investing activities were regarded as a
single segment in the financial statements. Segment results
represent the result from each segment without allocation of
finance costs and share of results of associates. The following
analysis is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

By business segments

An analysis of the Group’s result by operating segment is set
out below:

Bt %% R MY R

30. o EER

TEEERRACREBEASEREED
BzABEE FhEZEIBEZRAN
EREBRNEZEENE - RITEFERR
BRE BLHEEMREHBERB/SASE
BrXrBERE0E Ef EFEERE
IR EFHRNMBHRRARERE—D
B-DEXERENBZEE ETLE
DEEBMEKRRNREEHBERRZEE
RTofARMEELERRAMELRE
ZIE D BREREF A BRI -

REBIE
AEEBEEREEDEZ D TET A
T~

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-E-"H+-A=1t—-HLEE

Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
k& BE AREIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TET TET

Turnover EEH
Net realised loss on disposal of financial ~ HERBHERATFEREZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss B AEZE2BEEZRE

Dividend income B EUA
Interest income from loan receivables FEURE T2 M BWA
Total turnover BeEE
Other revenue Hiths

FEMRABHRE ZMBHRA

Interest income from unlisted long-term
debt investment

Total turnover and revenue BELERUE
Operating results ReExE
Segment results NEXE

Share of result of an associate
Impairment loss on assets held
by a Disposal Group

Loss attributable to owners of
the parent

ElE—HBENA 2 XE
HEREMBEEZRERR

BARAREAREER

(2,315) - - (2,315)
2,022 - = 2,022

- 2,482 - 2,482

(293) 2,482 = 2,189
21,301 = - 21,301
21,008 2,482 - 23,490
(12,290) (3,951) (8,981) (25,222)
282
(16,937)
(41,877)
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 30. 2 EER (&)
By business segments (Continued) BREKDPE(E)
An analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating REFBEENABBREKE DB D
segment is set out below: BT

As at 31 December 2012
R-B--%#+-A=+-H
Investing  Financing Unallocated Total
R& BE AEIE A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR TR

Other information Hirg R
Assets BE 844,774 48,583 28,847 922,204
- Interest in an associate -R-EBERA ER 36,530
958,734
p Liabilities BE = (52) (7,575) (7,627)
2
8
E Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE - - 4,016 4,016
g
o
z Change in fair value of financial assets ~ RBHERATEREZ
s
g at fair value through profit or loss NBEEZATERE 34,716 - - 34,716
% Provision for doubtful debts RIRRE - 1,035 - 1,035
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 587 - 31 618
2
all

YL H——&— 2102 1HOdIH TVNNNY
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 30. o EER (&)
By business segments (Continued) BREBKDPE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE_Z——S+_A=+—ALEE
Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
®E mE  RESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT TATL FET

Turnover EEE
Net realised loss on disposal of financial ~ HEREREEATFERE L
assets at fair value through profit or loss ~HIHEEZELEHEZFRE (97,884) - - (97,884)
Dividend income & B A 5,515 - - 5,515
Interest income from loan receivables EREF 2 FIBKA - 11,517 - 11,517
Total turnover o 3 (92,369) 11,517 - (80,852)
Operating results gexE
Segment results NEXE (437,125) 67,792 22,057 (347,276)
i
2
o3
Share of result of associates EEBE DR EE 307
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMBRRZ RE 17,661 o
_ o !
g
Loss attributable to owners of BARBEEAELEER %
the parent (329,308) 5
— o
(O]
=
(o)
o
2
[
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 30. 2 EER (&)
By business segments (Continued) BREKDPE(E)

As at 31 December 2011
RZE——F+-A=+—-8H
Investing Financing  Unallocated Total
®E mE  RESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TEX AT

Other information Hirg R
Assets BE 620,930 235,873 69,189 925,992
— Interest in associates -REE DR s 32,248
958,240
Liabilities BE (38) - (3,365) (3,403)
3
2 Additions to non-current assets REFTRBEE - - - -
3
=
s Net realised loss on disposal of financial ~ HERBHERATERREZ
E assets at fair value through profit or loss M EEZEEREBEFE 346,732 - - 346,732
?.n Provision for doubtful debts RIREAE - 19,255 - 19,255
= Write back of other payables B EMENRE - - (23,910) (23,910)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 1,408 - 353 1,761
at
S
=1
al For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and RERSIBEXRRENEZ S EMSEEIR
allocating resources between segments, all assets are ME MEEEHNESKERREDE
allocated to reportable segment other than interest on MEREEE N B Z BRI -
associates.

B H——&— 2102 L1HOd3Y TVNNNY
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30. o EER (&)
B B
LT AAERMERDEE (JHHEH
BEEREHEBRERINRERE
WEE D ZIEESES N

30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The following is analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets
and long-term debt investment, analysed by the geographical
areas in which the assets of the Group are located:

As at 31 December 2012
R=-TB-——-+=-H=t+—H

Other regions

Hong Kong in the PRC Total

F8 9HEHHEAHE et

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FExT FET

Non-current assets EREBEE 36,571 = 36,571

As at 31 December 2011
RNZZE——F+=ZA=+—H

Other regions

Hong Kong in the PRC Total

BAE HEHEMME st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FABTT FATT FAETT

Non-current assets EREBEE 32,304 67,592 99,896

AREEREZEZE——FRh_F—F
T A=F+—HIEFEZLZHZHA
HREEE (AEEEEER it
) o

Nearly all of revenue of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 was derived in Hong Kong, the

FOREFRONT GROUP LIMITED &5 SEARA 7

place of domicile of the Group's operating entities.

Information about major customers

Included in the turnover arising from financing segment
of HK$2,482,000 (2011: HK$11,517,000) are turnover of
approximately HK$1,000,000 (2011: HK$1,194,000) which
arose from interest income from one (2011: one) of the
Group's largest customers which contributed more than 10%
of the Group's turnover.

FEEFER

BE D REESE 2 = ¥ 52,482,000% 7T
(ZZ——4%:11,517,000& ) BB
BIASBEEEERBBIONZAEE —F
T ——F:—R)ERAEPZAERK
ANE4 7 & ¥ %471,000,0008 70 (=&
——% 11,194,000 7T ) °
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31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
a summary of events transacted after reporting period is set
out below:

(a) As disclosed in the announcement dated 28 January
2013, the Company proposed to implement a rights
issue in the proportion of one rights share for every two
adjusted shares held at the subscription price of HK$0.25
per rights share.

The rights issue proceeded in accordance with the
expected timetable as set out in the prospectus made
by the Company on 22 February 2013. Pursuant to
the prospectus, 201,010,848 shares were issued and
allotted under the rights issue. The net proceeds from the
rights issue were approximately HK$47.75 million. The
Company utilised HK$45 million from the net proceeds
of the rights issue for its money lending business. For the
remaining balance of net proceeds, the Company intends
to apply for its general working capital.

(b) On 19 March 2013, the Company entered into the
placing agreement with the placing agent pursuant to
which the placing agent has conditionally agreed to place
80,404,339 new shares on a fully underwritten basis,
to not less than six independent placees, at a price of
HK$0.21 per share.

The placing shares represent approximately 13.33% of
the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 11.76% of the Company’s issued share
capital as enlarged by the issue of the placing shares.
The placing shares will be allotted under the general
mandate.

It is expected that the net proceeds from the placing
after the deducting the placing commission and expenses
will amount to approximately HK$16.03 million. The
Company intends to apply the aggregate net proceeds
as general working capital for the existing business of
the Group and/or to finance any future investment when
opportunities arise.
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3. REBREE

Bt EM g mR LMo MKRESEIN
HEPRETZFAEBALOT

(a) WMAMA=-ZT—=F—A=+NH
LA HE NARERIRERE
AR AER G H—RERRD
ZLEBIEITHR  REEAETRME
A& % 150.257%8 7T °

HBRERARRAAR_ZE—Z=ZF=A
“+tZHABCHERERE
TEHRERET - RERRKRER
201,010,848 % 10 1R 4& £t ik 32 17
NEE IR FISHIBFRAA
47,750,000 7T o AR R & E 8y A #
% B 15 5038 558 2 45,000,000 7T
REBEREBL - RRRIGEIHME
HREFHERTAEE —REEA
%o

by R—ZFE—Z=F=ZA+NA KXRAF
B ERIERI VA S HE Bt B
EREBERHRBREHBIHEASE
AERR021B L 2 B AT L RAS
% J& 37 A B A BC 580,404,339 8%

B o

EEBRDHEERARRRAEET
PRAR#)13.33% » R A2 A& AT
RERNBARZEETRALD
11.76% - BRI R IE — AR IXHE
[k

REFTHEZMEKREFHE (N
REEEMEkAX%R)BHOA
16,030,000/ 7T o A 1~ &) 5 8l 1% 42
FISRBFREAEAEERBED
Z—MEEBEES RIKANRABE
Be LR ATMNEERKTES-



Financial Summary

BB B E

ATREDTEBAERAR ([ARE]) REW
Bom (5l [A%E ) BERAF 2 TIES
BEHEBRARRRGAMBERARKME -

The following is a summary of the published consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
financial position of Forefront Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the past five years.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REZTEBA®RK
INCOME
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f —T——% ZE-TF ZTTNF ZITEN\HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FET FEL FAT FET
Turnover EEH 2,189 (80,852) (21,703) 46,518 (71,564)
Other revenue Hiplzs 21,301 - - - -
Other income HAA 2,848 46,434 29,239 513 15,567
(Provision) Written back of RIZR ()
provision for bad and BERR
doubtful debts (999) 70,141 (89,346) 42,769 (44,240)
Distribution and selling HEREERX
expenses - - - - -
General and administrative —RETBERX
expenses (15,845) (18,606) (18,913) (19,637) (25,947)
Changes in fair value of REREEATE
financial assets at fair value ~ BEVHBEEZ
though profit or loss AFES (34,716)  (346,732)  (116,551) 26,839 (142,310) &
Impairment loss on assets HEEEMBEELZ =
held by a Disposal Group REEE (16,937) - - - -
Finance costs BAKA = - (1.324) (992) (1,630) 5
Share of results of associates ~ JE(GEI & A F 2 £ 4& 282 307 1,393 2,676 4,464 a
Impairment loss on interest in = R —E¥E AR 2 s
an associate Bz RERE - - - (158,500) - 2
Impairment loss on intangible EF & E 2 REEE 3
assets - - (12,258) - - ;
2
Loss before taxation BriiAl B (41,877) (329,308) (229,463) (59,814) (265,660) i
Taxation B8 - - - - - =
Loss from continuing REFBELEEB L -
operations &8 (41,877) (329,308) (229,463) (59,814) (265,660) ﬁ
Loss from discontinued REKRIEEER 2 I
operations BE - - - (1,798) (8,642) »Iieltlw
Total comprehensive loss (SYNETE =Nl §
attributable to the owners ZHEBEBE S
of the parent (41,877) (329,308) (229,463) (61,612) (274,302) %
>
z
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL SREMBMRRE
POSITION
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——f —T——% ZZ-TF ZZTTNFE ZIZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FET FET FTET
Non-current assets FRBEE 424,622 207,896 166,408 38,298 39,534
Current assets MENEE 534,112 750,344 753,657 483,163 230,821
Current liabilities REEE (7,627) (3,403) (29,820) (28,603) (45,080)
Net current assets MEBEFE 526,485 746,941 723,837 454,560 185,741
Total assets less current BELERRDHAR
liabilities 951,107 954,837 890,245 492,858 225,275
Non-current liabilities FRBEE - - - 84,461 -
Net assets EEFE 951,107 954,837 890,245 408,397 225,275
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